
 

AGENDA 

 
 



1 
 

 CITY OF HOPEWELL 
Hopewell, Virginia 23860 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor, Ward #7 
Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor, Ward #4 

Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Councilor, Ward #1 
Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Ward #2 

Anthony J. Zevgolis, Councilor, Ward #3 
Janice Denton, Councilor, Ward #5 

Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor, Ward #6 
 

Mark A. Haley, City Manager 
Stefan M. Calos, City Attorney 
Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 

 

AGENDA 
 

PHONE: 541-2249 
FAX: 541-2248 

 
e-mail: info@hopewellva.gov 

www.hopewellva.gov 
rarrington@hopewellva.gov 

 Date: August 8, 2017 MUNICIPAL BUILDING TIME: Closed Meeting:  6:30 p.m. 

 Regular Meeting  7:30 p.m. 

 
                                                         OPEN MEETING 
 
6:30 p.m. Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 
 

MOTION: To amend/adopt agenda. 
 
Roll Call 

 
MOTION:  To go into closed meeting for (1) discussion of appointment of specific appointees of 
city council (Office on Youth Commission, city manager, city attorney); (2) discussion 
concerning a prospective business where no previous announcement has been made of the 
business' interest in locating its facilities in the community; (3) consultation with legal counsel 
and briefings by staff members or consultants pertaining to actual or probable litigation 
(Children Services Act program, cemetery), where such consultation or briefing in open 
meeting would adversely affect the negotiating or litigating posture of City Council; and         
(4) consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by city council related thereto and 
regarding specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice by such counsel, in 
accordance with Virginia Code section 2.2-3711 (A) (1), (5) (7) and (8), respectively. 
 
Roll Call  
 

CLOSED MEETING 
 

RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO VIRGINIA CODE § 2.2-3712 (D): Were only public 

business matters (1) lawfully exempted from open-meeting requirements and (2) identified in the 

closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? 

 
Roll Call 
 
  

mailto:info@hopewellva.gov
http://www.hopewellva.gov/


2 
 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
7:30 p.m.   Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 
 

MOTION: To amend/adopt agenda 
 
Roll Call 

 
Prayer by Pastor Kenneth Branford of the LAOS Outreach Center, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America led by Councilor Luman-Bailey. 
 

Consent Agenda 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by Council and will be approved 

or received by one motion in the form listed. Items may be removed from the Consent Agenda for 

discussion under the regular agenda at the request of any Councilor. 
 
C-1 Minutes: May 2, 2017, June 5, 12, 13, 2017 and July 11, 2017 

 
C-2 Pending List:  Provided June 11, 2017 

 
C-3 Routine Approval of Work Sessions: None 

 
C-4 Personnel Change Report & Financial Report:  Personnel 

 
C-5 Ordinances on Second & Final Reading:  None 

 
C-6 Routine Grant Approval: None 

 
C-7 Public Hearing Announcement:  September 12, 2017 – Development Fee structure 

changes 
 

C-8 Information for Council Review: Meeting Minutes: School Board (June 22, 2017  
and July 13, 2017); ARLS Board of Trustees (June 20, 2017); Hopewell Water 
Renewal Commission (May 2, 2017 and April 3, 2017); revised Talent Bank Resume 
form (revised to include information regarding proof of residence and identity) 
 

C-9 Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations: Presentation to John Randolph Medical 
Center, Dominion Fire Works, and Vulcan Materials by Hopewell Recreation and 
Parks; presentation by Wendy Austin of FOLAR on Crater Health District Appomattox 
River Trail Neighborhood Access Project; presentation by Elliot Eliades on Hopewell 
Emergency Crew status; status report from Rob Churchman of Cherry Bekaert 
regarding 2015 CAFR 
 

C-10 Additional Announcements: Riverside Regional Jail, Sussex County potential 
membership 

 
  



3 
 

Public Hearings 
Each person addressing the Council shall step to the microphone, give name and address and limit 

comments to five (5) minutes or less. No person shall be permitted to address Council a second time 

until all others have been heard once and no one shall speak more than twice on any subject in any 

one meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to Council as a body and not to any member thereof. No 

person other than the Council and the person having the floor shall enter into any discussion either 

directly or through a member of the Council without permission of the Mayor. No question shall be 

asked a Council member (including Administration) except through the presiding officer. (Rule 405.) 
 

PH-1  Fee Structure Adjustments – Public Works and Recreation and Parks 
 

ISSUE:  The fees for Public Works and Recreation and Parks have become outdated 
and require revision. Both departments have proposed adjustments to fees. The 
proposed amendments will assist with offsetting expenditures while improving 
efficiency for both departments. 

 
  RECOMMENDATION:  Administration recommends approval. 
. 

MOTION:  To approve the proposed fee structures for Public Works and 
Recreation and Parks. 

  Roll Call 

PH-2  Transfer of Property – Parks and Recreation 

ISSUE:  Recreation and Parks requests transfer of an unused open space, identified 
as Union Hall Field, PID# 030-1065 to Hopewell School Board.  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Administration recommends approval. 

 
MOTION: To approve the transfer of Union Hall Field, PID# 030-1065 to  
Hopewell School Board. 
 
Roll Call 

 
PH-3  Conditional use permit for a metal carport 

ISSUE:   The proposed business owner of 903 South 15th Avenue (PID# 045-0380) 
requests a conditional use permit to locate a metal carport in the B-3, Highway 
Commercial District.  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Planning Commission and Staff recommend  
Approval. 

 
MOTION: To approve a conditional use permit to install a metal carport at 903 
South 15th Avenue. 
 
Roll Call 

  



4 
 

 
PH-4 Conditional use permit to locate a driving school in Downtown Hopewell. 

ISSUE:   Wanda Gilbert requests a conditional use permit to operate a  
driving school at 217 East Broadway (PID# 080-0760), zoned B-1, Downtown  
Central Business District. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Planning Commission and Staff recommend  
approval. 

 
MOTION: To approve a conditional use permit for a driving school at 217  
East Broadway. 

 
Roll Call 

 

PH-5  Approval of conditional use permit to establish a micro-winery in Downtown  
Hopewell 
 
ISSUE:   Haley’s Honey Meadery LLC requests a conditional use permit to establish 
a micro winery at 205 East Poythress Street (PID # 080-0391), which is zoned B-1, 
Downtown Central Business District. 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Planning Commission and Staff recommend approval 
 

MOTION:  To approve a conditional use permit for a micro-winery at  
205 East Poythress Street. 

 

  Roll Call 

Communications from Citizens 
A Communications from Citizens period, limited in total time to 30 minutes, shall be part of the 

Order of Business at each regular Council meeting. Each speaker will be limited to three (3) 

minutes. No citizen will be permitted to speak on any item scheduled for consideration on the regular 

agenda of the meeting. (Rule 405.) 

 
Regular Business 

 
Reports of City Manager: 
 
R-1 Hazard Mitigation – approval of five-year plan 
 

ISSUE:  Approval of the Richmond-Crater Multi-Regional Hazard Mitigation  
Plan (2017 Update) is required by the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the 2017 Richmond-Crater  
Multi-Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 
MOTION: To approve the 2017 Richmond-Crater Multi-Regional Hazard Mitigation 
Plan 
 
Roll Call 



5 
 

R-2 Approval and adoption of ordinance assessing $5.00 court fee for an electronic  
 summons system 
 

ISSUE:  City Council is asked to approve an  o rd inance  a l lowing  fo r  assessmen t  
o f  an  add i t iona l  $5 .00  cour t  f ee ,  pursuan t  to  Va .  Code  §  17 .1 -279 .1  
Addi t iona l  assessmen t  for  e lec t ron ic  summons ,  to be charged in each criminal 
or traffic case in the Hopewell district or circuit courts, in which the defendant is 
charged with a violation of any statue or ordinance. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval. 

 
MOTION:  To approve the ordinance allowing for assessment of an additional $5.00  
court fee. 

 
Roll Call 

 
R-3 Appropriation of $40,680 from FOLAR to the Riverwalk Project 

 
ISSUE:   The City has received a check from FOLAR in the amount of $40,680 for use  
in completion of the Riverwalk Project, and is asking that Council approve the appropriation 
of these funds. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Administration recommends approval of the appropriation. 
 
MOTION: To appropriate $40,680 from FOLAR to the Riverwalk Project. 
 
Roll Call 

 
R-4 Request for authority to exceed contract limit for Development 
 
 ISSUE: Per the City’s procurement procedures, when a department exceeds its limit, it  

must come to Council for approval. The Department of Development has funds budgeted, but 
seeks approval to exceed the limit. 

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Administration recommends approval. 
 

MOTION: To grant authority for the Department of Development to exceed its contract 
limit per the City of Hopewell procurement policy. 
 
Roll Call 

 
R-5 Approval of Hopewell Water Renewal Fund (Fund 032) Capital Projects Budget  
 Amendment 
 
 ISSUE:  Past budgeting practices did not require Hopewell Water Renewal to budget  

for capital projects in Enterprise Fund 32.  As good financial practice, the Interim Finance 
Director is requiring that capital projects be included in the budget to document proposed 
project expenses and revenues for each fiscal year.   

 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval. 
 



6 
 

 MOTION: To approve amendment of FY 2017 Fund 032 capital projects budget  
 to increase the total funding and appropriations by $275,000. 
 
 Roll Call. 
 
R-6 Schedule Council Retreat 
 
 MOTION:  To hold City Council’s retreat on _______________, 2017. 
 
Reports of the City Attorney:   
 
Reports of the City Clerk:  
 
Reports of City Council: 
 
 Committees  
 
 Individual Councilors   
 
 IR-1 Request City Council add to the September 12, 2017 agenda, to consider adoption of 
a policy allowing participation in meetings through electronic communication pursuant to Virginia 
Code § 2.2-3708.1. 
 
Roll Call 
 
 IR-2 Request City Council adopt a balanced budget resolution for all funds, to include 
corrected errors and fund transfers; and to receive a report that shows current balances to date for the 
General Fund, Rainy Day Fund, Assigned Funds and Unassigned Funds at the September 12, 2017 
meeting. 
 
Roll Call 
 
 IR-3 Request update from Johnnie Butler on streets paved, and appropriated funds 
available for additional paving. 
 
Roll Call 
 

Citizen/Councilor Requests 
 

Other Council Communications 

Adjournment  



 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 

 



 

MINUTES 



May 2, 2017 
Special Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL .HELD MAY 2, 2017 
 

A Special Meeting and Work Session of the City Council of the City of Hopewell, Virginia, was 
held Tuesday, May 2, 2017, at 6:30 p.m. in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North 
Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 
 
  PRESENT:  Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor 
     Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Councilor   
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
     Anthony J. Zevgolis, Councilor 
     Janice B. Denton, Councilor 
     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor 
 
     Mark A. Haley, City Manager 
     Stefan M. Calos, City Attorney 
     Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:33 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 
 

Mayor Shornak   - present 
Vice Mayor Gore   - present 
Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 
Councilor Holloway  - present 
Councilor Zevgolis  - present 
Councilor Denton  - present 

           Councilor Pelham         -        present 
 
CLOSED MEETING 
 
 Motion was made at 6:36 p.m. by Councilor Pelham, and seconded by Councilor Zevgolis, to go 
into Closed Meeting for (I) discussion of performance of specific appointees of city council, city manager, 
city attorney, boards, commissions, and committees), and public officers (city councilors); and (II) 
consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by city council related thereto and other specific legal 
matters requiring the provision of legal advice by counsel retained by City Council, in accordance with 
Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1) and (7), respectively. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
 
  
 
 



May 2, 2017 
Special Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 
 

Council convened into Open Session at 7:30 p.m. and responded to the question pursuant to 
Virginia Code § 2.2-3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-meeting 
requirements and (II) identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? Upon the roll 
call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
     
 
WORK SESSION 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the work session at 7:30 p.m. Roll call was take as follows: 
 

Mayor Shornak   - present 
Vice Mayor Gore   - present 
Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 
Councilor Holloway  - present 
Councilor Zevgolis  - present 
Councilor Denton  - present 
Councilor Pelham  - present 

 
 Mark Haley, City Manager, Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager, and Lance Wolff, Interim 
Finance Director, presented the City Manager’s proposed budget to council for review and discussion. 
Mayor Shornak closed the work session at 8:19 p.m. 
 
 At 8:20 pm, Councilor Pelham moved to go into the special meeting, which motion was seconded 
by Councilor Luman-Bailey.  Upon the roll call the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
     
  



May 2, 2017 
Special Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

 
PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF   
AMERICA 
 

Prayer by Rev. Dr. Sylvia Tucker, Director of John Randolph Medical Center Pastoral 
Care, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, led by 
Councilor Denton. 

 
 A motion was made by Councilor Denton, and seconded by Councilor Holloway, to 
adopt the agenda. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 A motion was made by Councilor Zevgolis, and seconded by Councilor Denton, to approve the 
consent agenda: Public Hearing Announcement: May 9, 2017, request to vacate portion of Plant Street; 
request to amend Zoning Ordinance regarding freestanding signs, and to define micro-cidery, micro-
distillery, micro-winery, wine bar and winery/restaurant.  Additional Announcement: May 9, 2 and city 
manager’s recommendations for CIP; May 23, 2016 – adoption of FY2018 city budget, on second reading. 
Presentation by James Sanderson of Davenport & Company. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
     Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
 
Public Hearings 
 
PH-1  A public hearing was held to receive comments regarding the proposed FY2018 budget.  There 
were no speakers, so the public hearing was closed at 9:06pm.  Councilor Denton moved to approve the 
fiscal year 2018 city budget on the first of two readings.  The motion was seconded by Councilor Bailey.   
Discussion ensued. An amendment motion was made by Councilor Pelham to continue using last year’s 
budget until the 2015 CAFR was completed. That motion failed for lack of a second.  Councilor Pelham 
stated that she would not vote for a budget until the 2015 CAFR was completed. She also stated that she 
wanted the city to continue paying the health insurance for the reitrees’ spouses. Councilor Pelham further 
stated that she had concerns about the Sands Anderson portion of the budget. She asked that all of her 
concerns be made a part of the record. Councilor Gore stated that she would not be voting for the budget 
because she had issues regarding the compensation study, which results were not in, issues with the retirees’ 
insurance being discontinued, questions about the line item issues and possible errors. Councilor Zevgolis 



May 2, 2017 
Special Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

stated that he too had concerns about the budget, and believed that council could not vote on the budget at 
a special meeting.  Mayor Shornak and Councilor Denton both stated they wanted to move forward with 
the budget proposed by the City Manager.  
 
 A substitute motion was made by Councilor Pelham and seconded by Mayor Shornak to postpone 
approval of the budget until the next council meeting.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
 
    Councilor Denton  - no 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
 
Mayor Shornak submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement because her daughter is a city employee. 
 
PH-2  A public hearing was held to receive comments regarding the proposed FY2018 school budget.  
There were no speakers, so the public hearing was closed at 9:49 pm.  Councilor Holloway moved to adopt 
the fiscal year 2018 school budget.  The motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Gore.   Upon the roll call, 
the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
 
Councilor Pelham submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement because she works for the school 
system. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
Reports of City Manager: 
 
SB-1  Approve Grant Funding Appropriation – The city manager presented the Emergency 
Management Office of Fire & Rescue’s request for appropriation of $50,200 in grant funds for Foam 
Operations and Rescue Task Force protection equipment and supplies. This grant was received from the 
State Homeland Security Grant Program process. There is no match required for this grant. Councilor 
Zevgolis moved to appropriate $50,200 to Hopewell Fire & Rescue for the spending down of grant funds. 
Upon the roll call, the vote resulted. 
 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 



May 2, 2017 
Special Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
 
Councilor Pelham submitted a Transactional Disclsoure Statement. 
 
SB-1  Approval of Tax Rate for 2018 – The assistant city manager presented the City Manager’s 
proposed tax increase for FY 2018. There were several rates proposed which included a 4 cent increase, a 
2 cent increase, and no increase.  Vice Mayor Gore made a motion to not increase real estate taxes, and for 
the tax rate to remain at $1.13. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted. 
 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
 
Councilor Pelham submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement. 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 At 10:10 p.m., motion was made by Vice Mayor Gore, and seconded by Councilor Zevgolis to 
adjourn. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 

Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
 
 
 
       
             
       Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
 
 
      
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk  
       



June 5, 2017 
Special Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL .HELD JUNE 5, 2017 
 

A Special Meeting of Hopewell City Council, was held Monday, June 5, 2017, at 6:30 p.m. in the 
City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 
 
  PRESENT:  Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor (arrived at 7:02 p.m.) 
     Janice Denton, Councilor 
 
     Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 
 
  ABSENT:  Christina Luman-Bailey, Councilor 
     Anthony Zevgolis, Councilor 
      
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:33 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 
 

Mayor Shornak   - present 
Vice Mayor Gore   - present 
Councilor Luman-Bailey            -     absent 
Councilor Holloway  - present 
Councilor Zevgolis  - absent 
Councilor Denton  - present 

           Councilor Pelham         -        absent  
 
ADOPT AGENDA 
 
 Motion was made at 6:33 P.M. by Councilor Denton and seconded by Councilor Holloway to 
adopt the agenda.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
     
CLOSED MEETING 
 
 Motion was made by Councilor Denton, and seconded by Vice Mayor Gore, to go into Closed 
Meeting for discussion of appointment of specific appointees of city council (school board); and (II) 
consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by city council related thereto and other specific legal 
matters requiring the provision of legal advice by counsel retained by City Council, in accordance with 
Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1) and (7), respectively. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 



June 5, 2017 
Special Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

    Councilor Denton  - yes 
     
Vote Result: 4-0 Yes 
 
 
RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 
 

Council convened into Open Session at 7:33 p.m. and responded to the question pursuant to 
Virginia Code § 2.2-3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-meeting 
requirements and (II) identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? Upon the roll 
call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
 
Councilor Pelham submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement. 
 
  
ADJOURN 
 
 At 7:33 p.m., motion was made by Councilor Pelham, and seconded by Councilor Denton to 
adjourn. All councilors responded “aye”. 
 
 
Vote Result: 5-0 Meeting Adjourned at 7:34  p.m. 
 
 
       
             
       Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
 
 
      
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk  
       



June 12, 2017 
Special Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL .HELD JUNE 12, 2017 
 

A Special Meeting of Hopewell City Council, was held Monday, June 12, 2017, at 6:00 p.m. in the 
City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 
 
  PRESENT:  Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
     Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor 
     Janice Denton, Councilor 
     Christina Luman-Bailey, Councilor 
 
     Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 
 
  ABSENT:  Anthony Zevgolis, Councilor 
      
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:00 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 
 

Mayor Shornak   - present 
Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
Councilor Luman-Bailey           -     present 
Councilor Holloway  - present 
Councilor Zevgolis  - absent 
Councilor Denton  - present 

           Councilor Pelham         -        present 
 
ADOPT AGENDA 
 
 Motion was made at 6:01 p.m. by Councilor Denton and seconded by Councilor Luman-Bailey to 
adopt the agenda.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes  
     
CLOSED MEETING 
 
 Motion was made by Councilor Denton, and seconded by Vice Mayor Gore, to go into Closed 
Meeting for discussion of appointment of specific appointees of city council (school board); and (II) 
consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by city council related thereto and other specific legal 
matters requiring the provision of legal advice by counsel retained by City Council, in accordance with 
Virginia Code § 2.2-3711 (A) (1) and (7), respectively. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
 



June 12, 2017 
Special Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes  
 
 
RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 
 

Council convened into Open Session at 7:01 p.m. and responded to the question pursuant to 
Virginia Code § 2.2-3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-meeting 
requirements and (II) identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? Upon the roll 
call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes  
 
Councilor Pelham submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement. 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 At 7:03 p.m., motion was made by Councilor Denton, and seconded by Vice Mayor Gore to 
adjourn. All councilors responded “aye”. 
 
 
 
 
       
             
       Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
 
 
      
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk  
       



D R A F T 

1 
 

MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING HELD JUNE 13, 2017 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of Hopewell, Virginia, was held Tuesday, June 13, 
2017, at 6:30 p.m. in Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, 
Virginia. 
 
  PRESENT:  Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor 
     Brenda Pelham, Councilor (arrived - 6:47pm) 
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor  
     Anthony Zevgolis, Councilor 
     Christina Luman-Bailey, Vice Mayor   
     Wayne Walton, Councilor  
     Jackie Shornak, Councilor 
 
     Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager 
     Stefan Calos, City Attorney 
     Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 
 
  ABSENT:  Janice Denton, Councilor (arrived- 8:33pm, left - 9:01pm) 
     Mark Haley, City Manager 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:31 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 
 
    Mayor Shornak  - present 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 
    Councilor Holloway  - present                     
    Councilor Zevgolis  - present  
    Councilor Denton  - absent 
    Councilor Pelham  - absent (arrived - 6:47 pm) 
 
 Motion was made by Councilor Zevgolis and seconded by Councilor Luman-Bailey to 
adopt the agenda. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
 



D R A F T 

2 
 

CLOSED MEETING 
 
 Motion was made at 6:33 p.m. by Councilor Zevgolis and seconded by Councilor 
Luman-Bailey to go into closed meeting for (1) discussion of appointment of specific appointees 
of city council (School Board, HRHA, VASAP); (2) discussion concerning a prospective 
business where no previous announcement has been made of the business' interest in locating its 
facilities in the community; (3) consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff members or 
consultants pertaining to actual litigation (VAWCO), where such consultation or briefing in open 
meeting would adversely affect the negotiating or litigating posture of City Council; and (4) 
consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by city council related thereto and 
regarding specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice by such counsel, in 
accordance with Virginia Code section  2.2-3711 (A) (1), (5), and (7) (two items), respectively.  
Upon the roll call, the vote resulted:  
 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
 
OPEN MEETING 
 
 Council came out of Closed Meeting at 7:33 p.m. Councilors were asked if they complied 
with Virginia Code § 2.2-3712(D), namely, that only public business matters (I) lawfully 
exempted from open-meeting requirements and (II) identified in the closed-meeting motion were 
discussed in closed meeting, to which they all responded yes. 
 
Roll call was taken as follows: 
      
    Mayor Shornak  - present 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - present 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 
    Councilor Holloway  - present                     
    Councilor Zevgolis  - present  
    Councilor Denton  - absent 
    Councilor Pelham  - present 
 
REGULAR MEETING 
 
 Prayer by Chaplain Judy Bailey of John Randolph Medical Center Pastoral Care, 
followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America. 



D R A F T 

3 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 Motion was made by Councilor Pelham and seconded by Vice Mayor Gore to  approve 
the Consent Agenda—Personnel Change and Financial Reports; Public hearing announcement: 
request to vacate a portion of Gray Street, City-School Board land exchange; Union Baptist 
Church proclamation.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

    Mayor Shornak  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes                    
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
PH-1 A public hearing was held to receive comments regarding nominees or applicants for the 
School board. The applicants are: Wesley Joyner, Anthony Sylvestor, Linda Hyslop, Rogers 
Henry, Ruth Johnson, and Deborah Marks) for two positions, each beginning July 1, 2017 and 
ending June 30, 2020, pursuant to Va. Code § 22.1-29.1 (Public hearing before appointment of 
School Board members). No one signed up for the public hearing so it was closed. Councilor 
Luman-Bailey made a motion to move the appointment to the School Board to the June 27, 2017 
meeting, which motion was seconded by Vice-Mayor Gore. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
 
    Mayor Shornak  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes                    
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITIZENS – Mayor Shornak opened the floor to any 
citizen wishing to speak, as none had signed up. There being no citizen comments, 
communications from citizens was closed at 7:38 p.m. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
R-1 Downtown Stormwater Drain Art - Presentation was made by Kevin Orlosky of Art on 
Wheels and Jake Elder, Economic Development Coordinator, with input by Charles Dane, 
Assistant City Manager,  requesting approval of a grant from the James River Association to 
fund artwork on 15-20 storm drains in downtown Hopewell on East Broadway, East Cawson, 
Appomattox, and Library Streets. Councilor Luman-Bailey made a motion which was seconded 
by Councilor Pelham to approve the stormwater drain art project and the proposed locations. 
Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 



D R A F T 

4 
 

 
    Mayor Shornak  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes                    
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
 
 
R-2 Approval of 2017 Sewer Service Rate Adjustment - presentation was made by Jeanie 
Grandstaff, Director of Hopewell Water Renewal, requesting a 5% increase in sewer rates, and to 
approve an ordinance changing metered consumption from cubic feet to gallons.  Councilor Gore 
questioned if the proposed rate increase was included in the budget. Grandstaff confirmed it was, 
in anticipation of council approval. Councilor Gore questioned how much was written off, 
Grandstaff said $600k write-off included 2013, 2014 and 2015. Grandstaff said they were hiring 
a consultant to assist with the collection issue. Dane said they were going to request that PB 
Mares look into the failure to produce a 2015 and 2016 CAFR timely. Luman-Bailey said that 
the operating budget, recurrent expenses and recurrent revenue was different to which Grandstaff 
advised this was due to the Enterprise Fund. Shornak confirmed that the requested increase 
would equate to an average increase of $1.14 per month, per household. Motion was made by 
Councilor Luman-Bailey to approve the requested 5% increase and ordinance. This motion was 
not seconded and so failed. 
 
Councilor Pelham completed a Transactional Disclosure Statement. 
 
R-3 Adoption of FY 2018 City Budget Resolution - presentation was made by Charles 
Dane, with input and remarks by the Mr. Haley and Lance Wolff, Interim Finance Director, 
regarding the adoption of the FY 2018 City Budget Resolution. Council approved the budget at 
its May 23, 2017 meeting. Councilor Pelham moved to adopt the FY18 budget resolution, which 
motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Gore. Discussion ensued. Gore and Pelham both expressed 
concerns that the resolution contained errors. Dane advised that the errors would be corrected. 
Zevgolis argued that the adoption of the resolution should wait until the errors were fixed. Dane 
advised council of the risks associated with not adopting the resolution at this time.  
 
Gore substituted a motion to approve the FY 2018 City Budget Resolution, but to do nothing 
under Sec. 31 of the resolution, other than the Riverwalk, until the 2016 CAFR is complete.  
Discussion ensued. Luman-Bailey was concerned that the 2016 CAFR would not be done until 
December (Dane agreed this was true). Shornak expressed her concerns that council was 
modifying the motion because she felt it was wrong to pick and choose. Denton said she didn’t 
understand why the CAFR was a problem since it had not been a problem the previous year. 
Wolff advised council that he had completed all of the journal entries required to submit to 
Cherry Bekaert for them to complete the 2015 CAFR. He further stated that he was working on 
the transmittal letter and other final documents. He stated that he believed the 2015 CAFR would 
be complete by the end of June 2017. He said that normally a CAFR takes seven months, so the 
2016 CAFR could be completed by as soon as December 2017. A call for the vote was given, to 
which all council agreed. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 



D R A F T 

5 
 

    Mayor Shornak  - no 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes                    
    Councilor Zevgolis  - no 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - no 
 
 Councilor Zevgolis requested that the clerk read the motion on the floor, which was done. 
Upon the reading of the motion, Councilor Zevgolis changed his vote from “no” to “yes,” 
making the final vote: 
 
    Mayor Shornak  - no 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes                    
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
    Councilor Denton  - no 
 
 After the final vote, Councilor Denton was excused from the meeting. 
 
 Mayor Shornak submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement.  Councilor Pelham also 
submitted a Transactional Disclosure Statement. 
 
R-4 Approval of Hopewell Water Renewal Fund 32 Capital Projects Budget Resolution - 
presentation was made by Jeanie Grandstaff, with remarks by the City Manager requesting the 
approval of the increase of the total funding and appropriations by $2,650,000 to Fund 32. 
Councilor Luman-Bailey moved to approve the increase, which motion was seconded by Vice 
Mayor Gore. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Mayor Shornak  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes                    
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 
 
R-5 Setting a Date for the Police Station Groundbreaking Ceremony – Mr. Haley advised 
Council that construction on the new police station will begin very soon and a date needs to be 
set for the groundbreaking. He proposed to set the groundbreaking for June 27, 2017 at 6:30, and 
to hold it on the grounds behind the Municipal Building. Vice Mayor Gore moved to accept that 
date and time for the groundbreaking, which motion was approved by Councilor Luman-Bailey. 
Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 



D R A F T 

6 
 

    Mayor Shornak  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes                    
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Councilor Pelham  - yes 

 
 
REPORTS OF THE CITY ATTORNEY:  
 
 Stefan Calos advised council of the status of the VAWCO rate increase request application, 
which litigation was won, and which resulted in a $2 million refund to the citizens of Hopewell. 
 
REPORTS OF THE CITY CLERK:  
 
 By unanimous decision of council, Peter Eliades was re-appointed to the John Tyler Alcohol 
Safety Action Program.  
  
REPORTS OF CITY COUNCIL:   
 
Luman-Bailey stated that she attended the Virginia Gateway and that the City scored well. She 
thanked Councilor Zevgolis for also attending. 
 
Gore spoke about the V3 veterans program and Hopewell’s involvement in it. 
 
Pelham asked Administration to please post “Children At Play” signs in all of the places where 
children are seen playing. She reminded everyone that this is the time of year that children 
playing in the street are mostly at risk.  She also noted that between Pine Ave and High Street 
has a tree which is growing out into the street and needs to be removed. 
 
Councilor Zevgolis requested that Dane come back to council with information regarding 
Boppers and why they are now located in Chesterfield. 
 
ADJOURN 
 
  At 9:20 p.m., Councilor Zevgolis made a motion to adjourn the meeting, which was 
seconded by Councilor Luman-Bailey, and unanimously passed. 
 
 
 
               
        Jackie Shornak, Mayor 
 
       
Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 
 



July 11, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING HELD MAY 23, 2017 
 

A meeting and work session of the City Council of the City of Hopewell, Virginia, was held 
Tuesday, July 11, 2017, at 6:30 p.m. in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main 
Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 
 
  PRESENT:  Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
     Jasmine E. Gore, Vice Mayor 
     Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Councilor   
     Arlene Holloway, Councilor 
     Anthony J. Zevgolis, Councilor 
     Janice B. Denton, Councilor 
      
     Mark A. Haley, City Manager 
     Stefan M. Calos, City Attorney 
     Ronnieye Arrington, City Clerk 
 
  ABSENT  Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the meeting at 6:31 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 
 
    Mayor Shornak   - present 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - absent (arrived at 6:32pm) 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 
    Councilor Holloway  - present 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - present 
    Councilor Denton  - present 
    Councilor Pelham  - absent 
 
ADOPT AGENDA 
 
 Motion was made at 6:32 p.m. by Councilor Denton and seconded by Councilor Luman-Bailey to 
adopt the agenda without revision. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes    
 
CLOSED MEETING 
 
 Motion was made at 6:33 p.m. by Councilor Denton, and seconded by Councilor Luman-Bailey, to 
go into Closed Meeting for (1) discussion of appointment or performance of specific appointees of city 
council (city manager, city clerk, board of architectural review); (2) consultation with legal counsel and 



July 11, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

briefings by staff members or consultants pertaining to actual litigation (The Beacon, EEOC), where such 
consultation or briefing in open meeting would adversely affect the negotiating or litigating posture of City 
Council; and (3) consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by city council related thereto and 
regarding specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice by such counsel, in accordance with 
Virginia Code section  2.2-3711 (A) (1) and (7) (two items), respectively. Upon the roll call, the vote 
resulted: 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes  
 
RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 
 

Council convened into Open Session at 7:43 p.m. and announced that it would not be coming out 
of closed session, but rather would return to it at the end of the regular meeting. 
 
WORK SESSION 
 
 Mayor Shornak opened the work session at 7:44 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 
 

Mayor Shornak   - present 
Vice Mayor Gore   - present 
Councilor Luman-Bailey - present 
Councilor Holloway  - present 
Councilor Zevgolis  - present 
Councilor Denton  - present 
Councilor Pelham  -  absent 

 
 Ed Watson, Director of Public Works, Aaron Reidmiller, Director of Parks & Recreation, and 
Tevya Griffin, Director of Planning, presented their proposal for fee increases and decreases for their 
departments, including trash collection fees, construction and demolition waste fees, leaf collection, (it 
was recommended that trash collection and stormwater fees be billed through the property tax collection 
billing process), park fees, planning and zoning fees, to council for review and discussion. After 
discussion, Councilor Zevgolis requested that the fee changes be brought back in a public hearing. Mayor 
Shornak closed the work session at 8:33 p.m. 
 
PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF   
AMERICA 
 

Prayer by Chaplain Michael Wyche of John Randolph Medical Center Pastoral Care, 
followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, led by Councilor 
Denton. 

 
  



July 11, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 A motion was made by Councilor Denton and seconded by Councilor Holloway to approve the 
consent agenda: Pending list updated July 7, 2017, Personnel Report, Public Hearing Announcement: 
August 8, 2017, conditional use permits for carport; driving school in Downtown Hopewell, and meadery; 
transfer of property; September 12, 2017, trash, sewer, wastewater collection; and Information for Council 
Review: Hopewell School Board calendar; School Board agenda for July 13, 2017. Upon the roll call, the 
vote resulted: 
 
     Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes  
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
PH-1  Community Development Block Grant update and appropriation request. A public hearing 
was held to receive comments regarding the proposed appropriation of $170,044, including the $162,676 
allocated by HUD for FY2018 from the CDBG Program, and the re-appropriation of $7,368 from cancelled 
projects FY2018 budget, and to authorize the city manager to submit the Third Year Annual Action Plan 
per HUD.  There were no speakers, so the public hearing was closed at 8:38 p.m.  Vice Mayor Gore moved 
to appropriate the $170,044 and to authorize the city manager to submit the Third Year annual action Plan.   
The motion was seconded by Councilor Holloway.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes  
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITIZENS 
 
Johnny Partin of Ward 3 announced that he was collecting donations and supplies for middle school 
teachers. Charles Dane announced that the TV show Homeland will be filming in Richmond, and have 
indicated that they will also film some scenes in Hopewell. Mr. Dane also announced that they were in 
negotiations with another movie planning   
 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
Reports of City Manager: 
 
R-1 Approve Grant Funding Appropriation – The city manager presented the Hopewell Fire & 
Rescue’s request for appropriation of $22,500 in grant funds from John Randolph Foundation for the 
purchase of two LUCAS™ chest compression devices. The total cost of the devises is $30,000 and Fire & 



July 11, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

Rescue will pay the remaining $7,500. Councilor Denton moved to appropriate $22,500 to Hopewell Fire 
& Rescue for the purchase of the LUVAS™ devices. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted. 
 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes  
 
R-2 Presentation on Classification and Compensation Study – John Anzivino of Springsted 
Incorporated presented on Springsted’s findings with the class and comp study. He highlighted the City’s 
deficient areas where employees were making below the minimum. There were three option presented to 
the city for adoption (see attached). Councilor Denton moved to adopt the study, which motion was 
seconded by Councilor Luman-Bailey. Upon discussion, no vote followed this motion.  
 
Councilor Luman-Bailey made a motion to amend the above motion to adopt Option 1 of the study. This 
motion was seconded by Councilor Denton. Upon roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes  
 
Councilor Luman-Bailey then made the motion to adopt Option 1 of the class and comp study. Before the 
vote, Councilor-Luman Bailey amended her motion to adopt Option 1 of the class and comp study, 
effective July 1, 2017. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes  
 
Mayor Shornak submitted a Transactional Disclosure statement. 
 
Councilors Zevgolis and Gore requested that Springsted return for a work session. 
 
R-3 A & B - Sewer Service Rate - Jeanie Grandstaff, Director of Hopewell Water Renewal and James 
Sanderson of Davenport & Company present to council regarding the need to adjust the current residential 
and commercial sewer rates by 5% to ensure that operational reserve fund remains secure, and to provide 
for the increased operation expenses resulting from the completion of the Phase 2 Nitrogen Reduction 
project. Ms. Grandstaff further requested that council repeal Sec. 31-11.1 of Article I, Chapter 31 of the 



July 11, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

Hopewell City Code as it was no longer accurate or necessary. Councilor-Luman Bailey made a motion to 
approve the 5% increase and repeal Sec. 31-11.1 of the Hopewell City Code. Her motion was seconded by 
Councilor Denton. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes  
 
R-4 Repeal and replace Chapter 2A of the City Code – Mark Haley, City Manager presented the 
proposed change to the Chapter 2A of the City Code, which is to repeal the current chapter and replace it 
with a proposed ordinance which incorporates the Virginia Public Procurement Act. Councilor Zevgolis 
moved to repeal and replace Chapter 2A, which motion was seconded by Councilor Denton. Upon the roll 
call, the vote resulted: 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes 
  
R-5 Approval of Hopewell Water Renewal Fund 32 Capital Project Budget Amendment – Mr. Haley 
and Ms. Grandstaff presented on the need to amend the FY17 budget to add a capital project and increase 
the total funding and appropriations by $622,400. Councilor Denton moved and Councilor Luman-Bailey 
seconded the motion granting the appropriation. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - yes 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes  
 
 
Extend Meeting – Mayor Shornak noted that it was already at 10:30 p.m. and asked for a motion to extend 
the meeting past the 10:30 p.m. deadline.  Vice Mayor Gore made the motion, which was seconded by 
Councilor Denton. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 
    Councilor Zevgolis  - no 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes  
  



July 11, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

 
Individual Reports of Council 
 
Vice Mayor Gore asked that both the Website and Legislative Committees set meetings in the near future. 
 
Luman-Bailey remarked that she had attended the Crater Regional meeting on June 22, 2017. She also 
advised that she and Mr. Haley had attended the ribbon cutting of the nitrogen project. 
 
Vice Mayor Gore asked Assistant Manager Charlie Dane about the status of the $2.5 million that was 
requested but never borrowed. Mr. Dane said that he would have the information regarding those funds 
prior to the net council meeting.  Vice Mayor Gore then asked about the budget resolution and how would 
the errors on that be addressed. Mr. Dane responded that the correct information would be provided to 
council in the next month or so when the city issued updated financials.  
 
Mayor Shornak commented to recreation and parks on the great job they had done on the July 1, 2017 
fireworks. She mentioned that she had attended the groundbreaking for the new police building. Mayor 
Shornak also said that she had been asked by Rev. C.W. Harris’ son to attend the Reverend’s 93rd birthday 
celebration. She also attended the Ft Lee Centennial race with Mr. Dane. She extended a special thank you 
to Herbert Bragg, Director of Intergovernmental Affairs for his assistance. The Mayor said that she, 
Councilors Luman-Bailey and Denton, along with Mr. Haley attended the July 10, 2017 Ft. Lee reception. 
Mayor Shornak ended by acknowledging that Lacharese Aird had attended tonight’s meeting. 
 
CCR – Councilor Luman-Bailey gave a report on spot blight and how the city is looking at different 
methods to deal with it.  
 
Mayor Shornak closed the regular meeting at 10:33 p.m. 
 

CLOSED MEETING 
 
 At 10:37 p.m. Council went back into Closed Meeting for (1) discussion of appointment or 
performance of specific appointees of city council (city manager, city clerk, board of architectural review); 
(2) consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff members or consultants pertaining to actual 
litigation (The Beacon, EEOC), where such consultation or briefing in open meeting would adversely affect 
the negotiating or litigating posture of City Council; and (3) consultation with legal counsel employed or 
retained by city council related thereto and regarding specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal 
advice by such counsel, in accordance with Virginia Code section  2.2-3711 (A) (1) and (7) (two items), 
respectively.  
 
RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 
 

Council convened back into Open Session at 11:35 p.m. and responded to the question pursuant to 
Virginia Code § 2.2-3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-meeting 
requirements and (II) identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? Upon the roll 
call, the vote resulted: 
 
    Councilor Denton  - yes 
    Mayor Shornak   - yes 
    Councilor Luman-Bailey - yes 
    Councilor Holloway  - yes 



July 11, 2017 
Regular Meeting 

DRAFT 
 

    Councilor Zevgolis  - no 
    Vice Mayor Gore  - yes  
 
  
ADJOURN 
 
 At 11:35 p.m., motion was made by Councilor Zevgolis and seconded by Councilor Denton to 
adjourn. Council unanimously agreed. 
 
Meeting Adjourned at 11:36 p.m. 
 
 
       
             
       Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor 
 
 
      
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk  
       



 

PERSONNEL 
CHANGE 
REPORT 



DATE:  August 1, 2017 

TO:  The Honorable City Council 

FROM:  Michelle Ingram, HR Specialist 

SUBJECT: Personnel Change Report – July 2017    

 

ADDITIONS (Regular FT and PT positions only) 

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 
GOMES, BENJAMIN FIRE FIREFIGHTER 07/12/2017 

LEE, COLIN FIRE FIREFIGHTER 07/12/2017 
MIJANGOS, SAUL FIRE FIREFIGHTER 07/12/2017 

O’CARROLL, CLIFFORD FIRE FIREFIGHTER 07/12/2017 
RUTTER, RICHARD FIRE FIREFIGHTER 07/12/2017 
SWANN, TIMOTHY FIRE FIREFIGHTER 07/12/2017 

THOMPSON, DANILE FIRE FIREFIGHTER 07/12/2017 
 

 PROMOTIONS            

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 
ASHBURN, FELICIA FINANCE ACCT TECH 07/12/2017 

 

SEPARATIONS           

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 
HODZIC, ALEN DEVELOPMENT PROP INSPEC 07/11/2017 

ROTZOLL, SPENCER RECREATION LIFEGUARD 07/11/2017 
PISAREK, DAN POLICE POLICE OFF 07/14/2017 

BEHNKE, ASHARANI POLICE VICT WITN ADVOC SR 07/14/2017 
WARD, WHITNEY RECREATION RESP LEADER 07/25/2017 

 
 
 
 
 
CC: Mark Haley, City Manager   Jay Rezin, IT 
 Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager  Dave Harless, Risk/Safety Coordinator 
 Renia Coles, Human Resources Director Carol Scarbrough, Parks & Recreation 
 Debbie Pershing, Senior Executive Assistant  Terry Burd, IT Manager 
 Lance Wolff, Interim Finance Director  
 Dipo Muritala, Accounting Manager 

Kim Hunter, Payroll 



  

INFORMATION 
FOR COUNCIL 

REVIEW 
 



MINUTES OF THE MEETING 
SCHOOL BOARD OF THE CITY OF HOPEWELL 

June 22, 2017 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Ms. Linda Hyslop, Vice-Chairman, called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. and the 
opening prayer was delivered by Ms. Linda Hyslop. 
 

PRESENT 
Ms. Linda E. Hyslop, Vice-Chairman; Mrs. Shirl A. Jefferson, member; Dr. Deborah 
Marks, member, were present. Mr. N. Gregory Cuffey, member, arrived at 5:35p.m.   
Mr. Christopher Reber, Chairman, was absent. 
 

ALSO PRESENT 
Dr. Melody D. Hackney, Superintendent of Schools; Dr. Kim Evans, Assistant 
Superintendent for Instruction; Mrs. Monique G. Barnes, Director of Finance; Mr. Patrick 
Barnes, Director of Operations; Mrs. Missy Shores, Director of Personnel; Mrs. Janice 
Butterworth, Supervisor of Secondary Instruction; Dr. Tina Barringer, Supervisor of 
Elementary Education; Mrs. Janel English, Coordinator of Finance; Ms. Caitlyn Davis, 
Public Relations Specialist; Mr. Aaron Reidmiller, Director of Recreation and Parks for 
the City of Hopewell; and one member of the press.  
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
Upon a motion by, Dr. Deborah Marks, and seconded by Mrs. Shirl Jefferson the School 
Board adopted the meeting agenda, adding a tour of the Food Service Feeding Bus as 
“E” under the discussion items, with all members voting aye. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

A. July School Board Meeting – Dr. Melody Hackney 
Dr. Hackney reminded the Board Members that they would need to meet in July to 
reorganize the Board for FY2018.  Discussion ensued regarding holding the 
reorganizational meeting on Thursday, July 6.     
 

B. Hopewell City School Strategic Plan - Dr. Kim Evans  
Dr. Evans distributed copies of the division’s strategic plan and highlighted the major 
points and thanked all who have contributed their time and energy to the project.  
She highlighted the major areas, goals and mentioned that tasks to achieve each 
goal were in the process of implementation.  
 

C. Preliminary Exit Interviews – Mrs. Missy Shores 
Mrs. Shores mentioned that she has been meeting with each employee who is 
leaving the division and will have a compilation once all have been completed, but 
many are leaving due to issues beyond the division’s control; i.e., spouse is being 
transferred, retirement, etc. 
 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 2 
 
D. Union Hall Lot Conveyance – Mr. Aaron Reidmiller 

Mr. Reidmiller advised School Board members that the City is still interested in 
transferring the old ball field at Union Hall, which has not been used in many years, 
to the School Board to use as it feels is necessary, and that its transfer was not 
contingent upon the transfer of other properties. Mr. Reidmiller cleared the 
misconception that there was a contingency regarding the properties Mr. Reidmiller 
previously brought before the School Board.  There is no obligatory exchange.  He 
also wanted to advise the Board of the City’s timeline.  He will bring it before City 
Council for approval in the upcoming months.   
 

E. Food Service Feeding Bus – Mr. Patrick Barnes  
Mr. Barnes took School Board Members and guests outside to look at the new Food 
Service Feeding Bus.  The Food Service Department renovated a surplus school bus 
and had it outfitted so that the division would be able to travel into the community 
and feed children during the summer.  School Board Members shared their 
excitement about the innovative idea. 
 

 
CLOSED MEETING 
Upon motion by Mrs. Shirl Jefferson and seconded by Mr. Greg Cuffey, the School 
Board adopted the following resolution to enter a Closed Session at 6:20 p.m., with all 
members voting aye. 
 
Pursuant to §2.2-3711(A) of the Code of Virginia, I move that the Board convene in a 
closed meeting for the purpose of discussing the following specific matters: 
 

A. The discussion or consideration of the employment, assignment, 
appointment, promotion, performance, demotion, salaries, or resignation of 
employees at Hopewell High School, Carter G. Woodson Middle School, 
Dupont Elementary School, Harry E. James Elementary School, Patrick 
Copeland Elementary School, Woodlawn Learning Center, Food Service 
Department, Transportation Department and the Central Office, which is 
authorized by §2.2-3711(A) (1) of the Code of Virginia. 

 
 
REGULAR MEETING 
Vice-Chairman Hyslop called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.  The prayer was 
delivered by Dr. Kim Evans, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.    
 
PRESENT 
Ms. Linda Hyslop, Vice-Chairman; Mrs. Shirl Jefferson, member; Dr. Deborah Marks, 
member, and Mr. Greg Cuffey, member, were present. Mr. Christopher Reber, 
Chairman, was absent.  



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 3 
 
 
ALSO PRESENT 
Dr. Melody D. Hackney, Superintendent; Dr. Kim Evans, Assistant Superintendent for 
Instruction; Mrs. Monique Barnes, Director of Finance/Board Clerk; Mrs. Missy Shores, 
Director of Personnel; Mr. T. Patrick Barnes, Director of Operations; Mrs. Tina Barringer, 
Supervisor of Elementary Instruction; Mrs. Janice Butterworth, Supervisor of Secondary 
Instruction; Mrs. Paula Brumfield, Supervisor of Literacy and Federal Programming; Ms. 
Brookie Fowler, Coordinator of Disabilities Services; Mrs. Janel English, Coordinator of 
Finance;  Ms. Carla Fizer, Principal;  Ms. Judy Barnes, Principal;  Mr. Byron Davis, 
Principal;  Mrs. Joyce Jones, Principal;  Mr. Keith Crews, Alternative Education Program 
Coordinator; Mr. Burlin Gregory, Director of Innovation; Mrs. Cheryl Webb, Director of 
School Improvement and Data Analysis; Ms. Tracy Wilson, Coordinator, Educational 
Evaluations and Program Improvement; Honorees with their families; and Ms. Caitlyn 
Davis, Public Relations Specialist.  
 
 
CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING 
Upon a motion by Dr. Deborah Marks and seconded by Mrs. Shirl Jefferson, the Board 
adopted the attached Certification of Closed Meeting, with all members present voting 
aye. 
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
Upon motion by Mr. Greg Cuffey, and seconded by Dr. Deborah Marks, the School 
Board adopted the June 22, 2017, Regular Meeting Agenda as presented, with all 
members voting aye. 
 
SPECIAL RECOGNITION 
 

A. VMEA 2016-2017 Blue Ribbon Award – Hopewell High School Choir and 
Band Ensembles – Dr. Kim Evans 
Dr. Evans and Dr. Hackney provided certificates to each Choral and Band member 
and their teachers, Miss Alana Marsh and Mr. Andre’s Pierce, for their outstanding 
performances.  They mentioned how proud they were to have the groups 
representing Hopewell City Public Schools and Hopewell High School.  The groups 
received the VMEA 2016-2017 Blue Ribbon Award.  The ensembles shook the hands 
of each Board Member in congratulations. 
 

B. Annual Carter G. Woodson Middle School Oratorical Speech Finalists – Dr. 
Kim Evans 
Dr. Evans called each winner present, while Dr. Hackney presented each with a 
certificate of appreciation for the students’ outstanding performance.  The students 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 4 
 

shook the hands of each School Board Member and were told how proud the 
division is of their success.  
 

C. Cafeteria Managers Recognition - Mr. Patrick Barnes 
Mr. Barnes recognized each school’s Cafeteria Manager for all of their hard work, 
noting that they had served 117,000 extra meals this year since the middle school 
and all of the elementary schools were now participating with the Federal CEP 
program and each child at those schools could eat without charge. 
 

D. Hopewell Division Teacher of the Year – Dr. Melody Hackney 
Dr. Hackney introduced Mr. George Sumner from Patrick Copeland Elementary 
School  as Hopewell City Public Schools’ Teacher of the year.  She invited Mr. Byron 
Davis, the Principal at Patrick Copeland, to say a few words of accolade for Mr. 
Sumner.  Mr. Sumner mentioned that he was proud to receive the award. 
 

E. Presentation of School Highest Monthly Student Attendance Trophy – Dr. 
Melody Hackney 
Dr. Hackney recognized the school with the highest student attendance for May of 
2017.  Dupont Elementary School won the award with a 95% attendance rate.  Ms. 
Carla Fizer, Principal, accepted the award on behalf of her students. 
 

F. Presentation of School Highest Monthly Staff Attendance Trophy – Dr. 
Melody Hackney 
Dr. Hackney recognized the school with the highest licensed staff attendance for 
May of 2017. This month there was a tie between Woodlawn Learning Center and 
New Hope Academy with a 95.45454% staff attendance rate.  Mrs. Joyce Jones, 
Principal, accepted the award on behalf of her staff and Mr. Keith Crews, Alternative 
Education Coordinator, accepted on behalf of his staff. 
 

REPORTS 
 

A. Spotlight on Instruction – Mr. Thomas Applegate 
Ms. Sommer Jones and Ms. Sara Fletcher introduced Mr. Applegate and advised the 
School Board Members of his success throughout the year.  Mr. Applegate informed 
all present that he attributes his success to the help of his colleagues, Ms. Jones and 
Ms. Fletcher and that he is pleased to be a part of the HCPS family. 
 

B. Spotlight on Instruction – Mr. Michael Dalton 
In Mr. Dalton’s absence, Mrs. Jan Butterworth introduced the students and 
described the assignment they completed for Spanish Class.  Each student had been 
tasked to write a murder mystery in Spanish.  Each presentation was in Spanish, but 
the students presented the information in English and tasked the School Board 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 5 
 

Members to solve the mysteries.  Ally Geronimo, Dawsyn Hock and Preston Haden 
were congratulated by each Board Member. 
 

C. Title I and Title II Grant – Mrs. Paula Brumfield 
Mrs. Brumfield walked the School Board Members through the major points of the 
Title I and Title II Consolidated application that was included in the Board’s packet.  
She will submit the application to the Department of Education for the continuation 
of the grants. 
 

D. Monthly Instructional Improvement Update – Mrs. Cheryl Webb 
Mrs. Webb presented the Board with the preliminary SOL and accreditation results, 
emphasizing the progress that has been made at each school.  At this time, it 
appears that Patrick Copeland Elementary School and Hopewell High School will be 
fully accredited. 
 

E. Finance, Maintenance and Clerk’s Report – Mrs. Monique Barnes 
 
May FY2017 Report (Month 11 of Fiscal Year)  
 

The May 15 and March 31, 2017 warrant totals included: 
 

Operating Fund $ 594,185.49
Textbook Fund $ .00
Cafeteria Fund $ 136,212,98

Capital Projects Fund $ .00
Building/Bus Fund $ 78,358.80

Total Funds $ 808,757.27
 
Mrs. Barnes mentioned to the Board that the accounts payable listings for May 15 
and May 31 were in the Board packet. These reports included payments for: 
instructional supplies, staff development, travel, testing supplies, retirement 
recognition, computer equipment and software, legal fees, postage, utilities, 
maintenance supplies, fuel, and janitorial supplies.  $78,358.80 was expended from 
the Building/Bus Replacement fund for the HVAC system in the Gym at Carter G. 
Woodson Middle School. 

 
Mrs. Barnes went on to mention that as a point of comparison, the operating fund 
had 22.34% of the FY2017 expenditure budget remaining at the end of May 2017, 
and there was 20.72% of the FY2016 expenditure budget remaining at the same 
time last year.  The revenue receipts were 58.19% of the budgeted amount for 
FY2017 at the end of May 2016, and the revenue receipts were 47.51% of the 
FY2016 budgeted amount at the same time last year.   

 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 6 
 

She continued by explaining to the Board that we are monitoring the end-of-year 
financial processes very carefully to make sure that our expenditures for the year 
are within the actual revenue as well as the approved budget.  She mentioned that 
the state supported student membership as of the end of May was 3,987, with the 
Average Daily Attendance (ADA) being at 93.15%; and the actual year-long ADM as 
reported to the state was 3,966.05 and the FY2017 budget was based on 3,975 
students.  

 
She concluded the Financial report by mentioning that there were numerous 
contract renewals listed in the General Resolutions.  We have received satisfactory 
service with these vendors and wish to renew their contracts for another year.  

 
Regarding the Maintenance report, Mrs. Barnes mentioned that during the month of 
May we completed and closed 485 work orders and ended the month with 182 still 
in progress.   

 
Mrs. Barnes also mentioned that there was no information from the Clerk to present 
to the School Board this month. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS- None  

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

Upon a motion by Mr. Greg Cuffey, and seconded by Dr. Deborah Marks, the Board 
adopted the attached Consent Agenda with all members voting aye.  
 

Minutes 
The minutes of the meeting of May 11, 2017, were approved as submitted. 
 

Licensed Personnel Resolutions 
 

17-06-L1   WHEREAS, Betty Ware has announced 
Retirement  her retirement as of July 1, 2017 
Betty Ware 
Supervisor of CTE &  WHEREAS, during her years of faithful and dedicated 
Health and PE service, she has earned the admiration and respect of her 
   friends and colleagues; and 
 
    WHEREAS, she has demonstrated her ability to meet 
   new challenges with enthusiasm; therefore, be it 
 
    RESOLVED, that the School Board of the City of 
   Hopewell expresses its appreciation to Betty Ware 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 7 
 
   for her many years of dedicated service, and contributions 
   to her profession; and be it further 
 
    RESOLVED, that the School Board of the City 
   of Hopewell extends to Betty Ware its best wishes 
   for many years of happiness during her retirement. 
 
17-06-L2   WHEREAS, Carla Carr has announced 
Retirement  her retirement as of July 1, 2017 
Carla Carr 
Teacher  WHEREAS, during her years of faithful and dedicated 
   service, she has earned the admiration and respect of her 
   friends and colleagues; and 
 
    WHEREAS, she has demonstrated her ability to meet 
   new challenges with enthusiasm; therefore, be it 
 
    RESOLVED, that the School Board of the City of 
   Hopewell expresses its appreciation to Carla Carr 
   for her many years of dedicated service, and contributions 
   to her profession; and be it further 
 
    RESOLVED, that the School Board of the City 
   of Hopewell extends to Carla Carr its best wishes 
   for many years of happiness during her retirement. 
 
 
17-06-L3   WHEREAS, Susanne Moore has announced 
Retirement  her retirement as of July 1, 2017 
Susanne Moore 
Teacher   WHEREAS, during her years of faithful and dedicated 
   service, she has earned the admiration and respect of her 
   friends and colleagues; and 
 
    WHEREAS, she has demonstrated her ability to meet 
   new challenges with enthusiasm; therefore, be it 
 
    RESOLVED, that the School Board of the City of 
   Hopewell expresses its appreciation to Susanne Moore 
   for her many years of dedicated service, and contributions 
   to her profession; and be it further 
 
    RESOLVED, that the School Board of the City 
   of Hopewell extends to Susanne Moore its best wishes 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 8 
 
   for many years of happiness during her retirement. 
 
17-06-L4   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Leena Mustafa, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Leena Mustafa appointment as a Teacher, effective August 25, 2017  
   Vice: Teutianna Durrah 
   Assignment:  Carter G. Woodson 
   Salary:  $43,491.00 (TCH, Step 0) 
 
17-06-L5   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Nicole Zimmel, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Nicole Zimmel appointment as a Teacher, effective August 25, 2017  
   Vice: TBD  
   Assignment:  TBD 
   Salary:  $43,491 (TCH, Step 0) 
 
17-06-L6   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Arlesa Johnson, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Arlesa Johnson appointment as a teacher, effective August 25, 2017  
   Vice: Mary White 
   Assignment:  Harry E. James Elementary School 
   Salary:  $58,116.00 (TCH, Step 26) 
 
 
17-06-L7   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Courtney Brown, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Courtney Brown appointment as a Teacher, effective August 25, 2017  
   Vice: TBD  
   Assignment:  Carter G. Woodson 
   Salary:  $43,491.00 (TCH, Step 0) 
 
17-06-L8   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Corinne Gumann, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Corinne Gumann appointment as a Teacher, effective August 25, 2017  
   Vice: Venessa Bond  
   Assignment:  Hopewell High School 
   Salary:  $46,141 (TCHIII, Step 0) 
 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 9 
 
17-06-L9   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Lee Ann Baker, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Lee Ann Baker appointment as a Teacher, effective August 25, 2017  
   Vice: Nicole Cary  
   Assignment:  Harry E. James 
   Salary:  $54,994 (TCH, Step22) 
 
17-06-L10   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Lacey Driver, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Lacey Driver  appointment as a Teacher, effective August 25, 2017  
   Vice: Brittany Ashby  
   Assignment:  Dupont Elementary School 
   Salary:  $46,141 (TCHIII, Step3) 
 
17-06-L11   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Leah Reed, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Leah Reed  appointment as a Teacher, effective August 25, 2017  
   Vice: Tammy Stephens   
   Assignment:  Dupont Elementary School 
   Salary:  $44,708 (TCH, Step7) 
 
17-06-L12   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Linda Mickens, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Linda Mickens appointment as a Teacher, effective August 25, 2017  
   Vice: Amy Jarvis  
   Assignment:  Carter G. Woodson 
   Salary:  $50,622 (TCH, Step16) 
 
17-06-L13   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Kathy Gilstrap, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Kathy Gilstrap appointment as a Teacher, effective August 25, 2017  
   Vice: C. Rybar  
   Assignment:  Dupont Elementary 
   Salary:  $50,622 (TCH, Step16) 
 
17-06-L14   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Jessica Bourneuf, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 10 
 
Jessica Bourneuf appointment as a Guidance Counselor, effective August 25, 2017  
   Vice: Ashley Denton  
   Assignment:  Hopewell High School 
   Salary:  $49,702 (TCHIII 215 , Step0) 
 
17-06-L15   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Probationary  Superintendent of Schools, that Maria Feliciano, being 
Appointment  duly certified, be and is hereby granted a probationary 
Maria Feliciano appointment as a ESL Teacher, effective August 25, 2017  
   Vice:  
   Assignment:  Carter G. Woodson Middle School 
   Salary:  $51,219 (TCHIII, Step 13) 
 
17-06-L16    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Brittany Nice 
of  be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Brittany Nice Assignment:  Teacher, Harry E. James Elementary School 
 
17-06-L17    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Teutianna 

Durrah 
of  be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Teutianna Durrah Assignment:  Teacher, Carter G. Woodson Middle School 
 
17-06-L18    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Lauren Robinson 
of  be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Lauren Robinson Assignment:  Guidance Counselor, Hopewell High School 
 
17-06-L19    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation of Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Melaniann Piercy  

be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Melaniann Piercy Assignment:  Guidance Counselor, Hopewell High School 
 
17-06-L20    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Khilia Logan 
of  be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Khilia Logan Assignment:  Teacher, Carter G. Woodson Middle School 
 
17-06-L21    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Jennifer 
of Fleming be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Jennifer Fleming Assignment:  Teacher; Harry E. James Elementary School 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 11 
 
 
17-06-L22    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Meredith Boyd 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Meredith Boyd Assignment:  Teacher; Carter G.Woodson Middle School 
 
17-06-L23    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Rachel Tew 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Rachel Tew  Assignment:  Teacher; Hopewell High School 
 
17-06-L24    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Jessica Minnix 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Jessica Minnix  Assignment:  New Hope Academy 
 
17-06-L25    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Ashley Denton 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 30, 2017.  
Ashley Denton  Assignment:  Guidance Counselor; Hopewell High School 
 
17-06-L26   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Patrice Godbolt 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 16, 2017.  
Patrice Godbolt Assignment:  Math Specialist; Carter G. Woodson Middle School 
 
17-06-L27   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Cassandra 

Merrick 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 16, 2017.  
Cassandra Merrick Assignment:  Teacher; Woodlawn Learning Center 
 
17-06-L28   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Sean Bonner 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 16, 2017.  
Sean Bonner Assignment:  Teacher; Carter G. Woodson Middle School 
 
17-06-L29   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Irene Robinson 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 16, 2017.  
Irene Robinson Assignment:  Teacher; New Hope Academy 
 
17-06-L30   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 12 
 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Tiffany Farmer  
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 16, 2017.  
Tiffany Farmer  Assignment:  Assistant Principal; Patrick Copeland Elementary 

School 
 
17-06-L31   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Rae Harvey 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 16, 2017.  
Rae Harvey Assignment:  Assistant Principal; Carter G. Woodson Middle School 
 
17-06-L32   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Kristina Holland 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 16, 2017.  
Kristina Holland Assignment:  Teacher; Patrick Copeland Elementary School 
 
17-06-L33   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Valerie Rafey 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 16, 2017.  
Valerie Rafey Assignment:  Teacher; Patrick Copeland Elementary School 
 
17-06-L34   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Virginia Pfister 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 16, 2017.  
Virginia Pfister Assignment:  Teacher; Patrick Copeland Elementary School 
 
17-06-L35   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Angela Miller  
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 16, 2017.  
Angela Miller Assignment:  Teacher; Carter G. Woodson Middle School 
 
17-06-L36   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Lara Van Gundy 
of be and is hereby accepted, effective June 16, 2017.  
Lara Van Gundy Assignment:  Teacher; Carter G. Woodson Middle School 
 
17-06-L37   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Transfer Superintendent of Schools, that the transfer of Emily Ward 
of from instructional coach to teacher be and is hereby accepted,  
Emily Ward  effective June 30, 2017. 

Assignment:  Teacher; Carter G. Woodson Middle School 
 
17-06-L38   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Transfer Superintendent of Schools, that the transfer of Sommer Jones 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 13 
 
of from ITRT to instructional coach be and is hereby accepted,  
Sommer Jones  effective June 30, 2017. 

Assignment:  Instructional Coach 
 
17-06-L39            RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval of  Superintendent of Schools, that Jacqueline Edmonds be paid a  
Supplement supplement in the  amount of $1,500.00 for completing CTE follow 

up surveys during the 2016-2017 school year.  
 
17-06-L40            RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval of  Superintendent of Schools, that Melaniann Piercy be paid a  
Supplement supplement in the  amount of $1,000.00 for completing career  

assessments and industry certification testing during the 2016-2017 
school year.  

 
17-06-L41   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Superintendent 
Amendment to of Schools, that resolution 17-05-L22 be and is hereby amended 
17-05-L22 to pay a stipend in the amount of $6000.00 to Kori Harrow for 

supervising other speech pathologists and completing required 
Medicaid trainings and documentation funded by Medicaid 
reimbursements. 
 

17-06-L42   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval of   Superintendent of Schools, that a stipend for providing services   
Stipend  during the winter sports season at Carter G. Woodson Middle 
School 

be and is hereby approved for Carrie Ross. 
   Stipend:  $21.53   
 
17-06-L43            RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval of  Superintendent of Schools, that supplements for the following  
Supplements athletic coaching positions at Hopewell High School be and are 

hereby approved for the 2016-2017 Spring Sports Season. 
 

Position Name Supplement 
Baseball   
Head Coach Adam Capps $2000.00 
Assistant Coach Carl Easter $1400.00 
Assistant Coach Bobby Pershing $4100.00 
Softball   
Head Coach Megan Holder $3400.00 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 14 
 

Assistant Coach Rachel Baldwin $1400.00 
Girls Soccer   
Head Coach Emily Ward $1900.00 
Outdoor Track   
Head Coach Frank Cancino $4300.00 
Assistant Mary Sims $1400.00 
Assistant Jonathan Lewis $1400.00 
Boys Tennis   
Head Coach Michael Dalton $2100.00 
Girls Tennis   
Head Coach John Johnson 1900.00 
Weight Training Ricky Irby 700.00 
Spring Sports Site 
Supervisor 

Anthony Anderson 700.00 

 
17-06-L44   Resolved, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
Appointment  of Schools, that the following be and are hereby approved as  
of Summer School  substitute teachers for Summer School to be paid out of 21st  
Teachers  Century Grant Funds. 
   Nina Durstine (Teacher) 
   Emily Ward (Teacher) 
   Marlaina Mueller (SPED) 
   Ashley Clear (sub) 
   Haley Strum (sub) 
   Morgan Hobson (sub)  
   Melissa Rooks (sub) 
   Taylor Redmond (sub) 
   Tiffany Bailey (sub) 
   Angela Miller (sub) 
 
 
 
17-06-L45    Resolved, upon the recommendation of the  
Approval of            Superintendent of Schools, that the following teachers be paid 
Stipends                $25.00 per hour for Stipends providing instruction as part of the 21st 

Century Community Learning Grant Program at Patrick Copeland 
Elementary School. 

   Victoria Edwards 
   Valerie Rafey 
 
17-06-L46    Resolved, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
Reappointment of Schools, that the following be reappointed as a substitute school  



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 15 
 
of School  psychologists for the 2017-2018 school year, effective July 5, 2017. 
Psychologists  Donna Elder and Marlene Schillinger 
 
17-06-L47    Resolved, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
Reappointment of Schools, that Crystal Journette-Hawkes is hereby reappointed as   
of                      a part time special education counselor for the 2017-2018 school  
Crystal Journette-     year, effective July 5, 2017. 
Hawkes 
 
17-96-L48   Resolved, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
Approval of   of Schools, that the stipend paid to 21st Century Grant Staff be  
Pay Increase  increased by $10.00 per hour.  
   Teachers from $25.00 to $35.00 
   Coordinators from $30.00 to $40.00 
 
17-06-L49   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Superintendent Approval of  of Schools, the following supplements be 
approved as funded by the  
Supplements Title I, Part A, portion of the “Every Student Succeeds Act" 

Application for the 2016-2017 school year effective July 1, 2017  
through August 18, 2017: 

 
Schools Number of 

Teachers 
Amount per Hour Maximum Number 

of hours 
Carter G. 

Woodson Middle 
School 

20 $20.00 12 hours per 
person (not to 

exceed $4847.03) 
Patrick Copeland 

Elementary School 
12 $20.00 23 hours per 

person (not to 
exceed $5520.00 

total) 
Patrick Copeland 

Elementary 
School-Creation of 
PBAs and Rubrics 

5 $20.00 15 hours per 
person core 
instructional 

teachers (not to 
exceed $1200) 
10 hours (per 1 
SPED teacher to 

modify 
PBAs/rubrics (not 
to exceed $200) 

Dupont 
Elementary School 

12 $20.00 23 hours per 
person (not to 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 16 
 

exceed $5520.00 
total) 

Dupont 
Elementary 

School-Creation of 
PBAs and Rubrics 

5 $20.00 15 hours per 
person core 
instructional 

teachers (not to 
exceed $1200) 
10 hours (per 1 
SPED teacher to 

modify 
PBAs/rubrics (not 
to exceed $200) 

 
17-06-L50    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Superintendent  
Approval of   of Schools, the following supplements be approved as funded by 
the  
Supplements Title I, Part A, portion of the “Every Student Succeeds Act" 

Application for the 2016-2017 school year effective June 19, 2017  
throughJune 30, 2017: 

 
Schools Number of 

Teachers 
Amount per 

Hour 
Maximum 
Number of 

hours 
Carter G. 

Woodson Middle 
School 

20 $20.00 12 hours per 
person (not to 

exceed $4847.03) 
Patrick Copeland 

Elementary School 
12 $20.00 23 hours per 

person (not to 
exceed $5520.00 

total) 
Patrick Copeland 

Elementary 
School-Creation of 
PBAs and Rubrics 

5 $20.00 15 hours per 
person core 
instructional 

teachers (not to 
exceed $1200) 
10 hours (per 1 
SPED teacher to 

modify 
PBAs/rubrics (not 
to exceed $200) 

Dupont 12 $20.00 23 hours per 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 17 
 
Elementary School person (not to 

exceed $5520.00 
total) 

Dupont 
Elementary 

School-Creation of 
PBAs and Rubrics 

5 $20.00 15 hours per 
person core 
instructional 

teachers (not to 
exceed $1200) 
10 hours (per 1 
SPED teacher to 

modify 
PBAs/rubrics (not 
to exceed $200) 

Harry E. James 
Elementary School 

12 $20.00 23 hours per 
person (not to 

exceed $5520.00 
total) 

Harry E. James 
Elementary 

School- Creation 
of PBAs and 

Rubrics 

5 $20.00 15 hours per 
person core 
instructional 

teachers (not to 
exceed $1200) 
10 hours (per 1 
SPED teacher to 

modify 
PBAs/rubrics (not 
to exceed $200) 

 
 
17-06-L51    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Superintendent  
Appointment   of Schools, that effective June 19 - August 3, 2017, the following  
Of Summer School positions be approved for the Standards of Learning Summer 
School  
Coordinator  Program funded through SOL Summer School stipend funds: 
 

Position Maximum 
Number 

Amount per 
Hour 

Maximum No. of 
hours 

Elementary 
Coordinators 
PC-George 

Sumner 

3 $30.00 114 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 18 
 

Dup-Ryan 
Ponder 

HEJ- 
 
 
 
 
17-06-L52    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Superintendent Approval of  of Schools, the following supplements be 
approved as funded by the Supplements  FY18 Title I, Part A, portion of the 
“Every Student Succeeds Act" 

Application for the 2017-2018 school year effective July 1, 2017  
through August 18, 2017: 

 
Schools Number of 

Teachers 
Amount per 

Hour 
Maximum 
Number of 

hours 
Carter G. 

Woodson Middle 
School 

20 $20.00 7.5 hours per 
person (not to 

exceed $3,000.00)
    
 
17-06-L53                   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Superintendent Amendment to        of Schools, that Resolution 16-09-L44 be and is 
hereby amended to   
Resolution              reflect the appointment of Mary Shores to EPAS/Step 4, effective 
16-09-L44              June 30, 2017. 
 
 
 
Classified Personnel Resolutions 

 
17-06-C1   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Retirement  Superintendent of Schools, that the retirement of Brenda Hill 
Of   be and is hereby approved, effective July 1, 2017. 
Brenda Hill  Assignment:  Teacher Assistant; Harry E. James Elementary School  
 
 
17-06-C2   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Retirement  Superintendent of Schools, that the retirement of Richard Thomas 
Of   be and is hereby approved, effective July 1, 2017. 
Richard Thomas  Assignment:  Manager of Maintenance 
 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 19 
 
 
17-06-C3   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Gladys Jenkins  
Of Gladys  Stevens be and is hereby approved, effective April 7, 2017. 
Jenkins-Stevens Assignment:  Bus Driver – Transportation 
 
 
17-06-C4  RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Monica Jones 
Of Monica Jones be and is hereby approved, effective May 19, 2017. 
 Assignment:  Secretary – Hopewell High School 
 

 
17-06-C5    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Laura Allen be  
Of Laura Allen and is hereby approved, effective May 5, 2017. 

Assignment:  Van Driver – Transportation 
 

 
17-06-C6    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Resignation Superintendent of Schools, that the resignation of Tiffany Roman  
Of Tiffany Roman be and is hereby approved, effective May 15, 2017. 

Assignment:  Secretary I – Hopewell High School 
 

17-06-C7    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Gay Brown be and is  
Full-Time hereby appointed as a Full-Time Bus Driver for the  
Transportation 2017-2018school year, effective July 1, 2017. 
Gay Brown  Salary: $12, 089 per year 

 
17-06-C8    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that James Doutt be and is  
Substitute  hereby appointed as a Substitute Maintenance worker for the  
Maintenance  2016-2017 school year, effective June 1, 2017. 
James Doutt  Salary: $11.83 per hour 
 
17-06-C9    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Reappointment  Superintendent of Schools, that the following be and are hereby   
Of Maintenance  reappointed as Maintenance Substitutes for the 2017-2018 school 
Substitutes  year, effective July 1, 2017 at their FY2018 hourly rates.  

Kenneth Congelton, Emery Lewis and James Doutt 
 

17-06-C10    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 20 
 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that the following be and is hereby 
Of Summer Food  granted temporary appointments as Summer Food Service Food  
Service Manager Service Managers for the 2017 Summer Food Service Programs, 

effective  June 26 – June 30, 2017 at their FY2017 hourly rate:  
Susan Wiley  
Anita Mays 
 

17-06-C11   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Appointment   Superintendent of Schools, that the following be and are hereby 
Of Summer Food granted temporary appointments as Summer Food Service Food  
Service Managers Service Managers for the 2017 Summer Food Service Programs, 

effective  July 1 – August 24, 2017 at their FY2018 hourly rate:  
Susan Wiley  
Anita Mays 
 

17-06-C12   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that the following be and is hereby  
Of Summer Food granted temporary appointments as Summer Food Service  
Service Manager Managers for the 2017 Summer Food Service Programs, effective 

June 19 - June 30, 2017 at the following FY2017 hour rate:  
Floretta Moore, $10.81 per hour  
 

17-06-C13   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Appointment   Superintendent of Schools, that the following be and are hereby  
Of Summer Food granted temporary appointments as Summer Food Service  
Service Managers Managers for the 2017 Summer Food Service Programs, effective 

July 1 – August 24, 2017 at the following FY2017 hour rate:  
Floretta Moore, $15.24 per hour 
Mary Walker, $15.24 per hour 
Terri Henggeler, $15.24 per hour 
Susan Bradshaw, $15.24 per hour 

 
17-06-C14    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Appointment   Superintendent of Schools, that the following be and are hereby 
Of Student  appointed as student IT workers for the 2016-2017 school year,  
IT Workers  effective June 19-June 30, 2017 at $7.85 per hr.  

Hunter Cowden, Mary-Catherine Neal and Zayne Landes 
 

17-06-C15    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the   
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that the following be and are hereby   
Of Student  appointed as student IT workers for the 2017-2018school year,  
IT Workers  effective July 1, 2017 at $7.85 per hr.  

Hunter Cowden, Mary-Catherine Neal and Zayne Landes  



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 21 
 

 
17-06-C16    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Appointment   Superintendent of Schools, that the following be and are hereby  
Of Summer Food granted temporary appointments as Summer Food Service Workers  
Service Workers for the 2017 Summer Food Service Programs, effective June 20 – 

June 30, 2017 at their FY2017 hourly rate:  
Pamela Bowles 
Brenda Hill 
Shannon Rackley 
Jasmin Torres 
Henrietta Jackson 
Ernestine Shaw

 Deborah Sturges 
Tina Tyler 
Cynthia Fistler 
Tricia King 
Monique Gaither

 Michael Robbins 
Mary Walker  
Tammy Anderson 
Patricia Allen  
Juanita Boggs 
Ashley Edwards 
Darcel Hill 
Deondre Marks 
James Studivant 
Michael Taggart 
Maria Boone 

Elizabeth Edwards 
Darnell Hamilton 
Heddi Leonard 
Daquan Studivant  
Vicki Vance 
Jennifer Vreeland 
Alexander Allen 
Shanta Hill 
Theresa Lipari 
Joyce Pope  
Ambrosia VanEpps 
Amoah, Blynder 
Rosie McCabe 
Diane Williams 
Nellie Huddleston 
Tewana McMillan 
Bonnie Brisendine 
Bertha Jones 
Ida Moss 
Jatarra Ruffin   
Tracy White 
Tammy Anderson 

 
 
 
 
17-06-C17    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Appointment   Superintendent of Schools, that the following be and are hereby  
Of Summer Food granted temporary appointments as Summer Food Service Workers   
Service Workers for the 2017 Summer Food Service Programs, effective July1 – 

August 24, 2017 at their FY2018 hourly rate:  
 

Pamela Bowles 
Brenda Hill 
Shannon Rackley 
Jasmin Torres 
Henrietta Jackson 

Ernestine Shaw
 Deborah Sturges 

Tina Tyler 
Cynthia Fistler 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 22 
 

Tricia King 
Monique Gaither

 Michael Robbins 
Mary Walker  
Tammy Anderson 
Patricia Allen  
Juanita Boggs 
Ashley Edwards 
Darcel Hill 
Deondre Marks 
James Studivant 
Michael Taggart 
Maria Boone 
Elizabeth Edwards 
Darnell Hamilton 
Heddi Leonard 
Daquan Studivant  
Vicki Vance 

Jennifer Vreeland 
Alexander Allen 
Shanta Hill 
Theresa Lipari 
Joyce Pope  
Ambrosia VanEpps 
Amoah, Blynder 
Rosie McCabe 
Diane Williams 
Nellie Huddleston 
Tewana McMillan 
Bonnie Brisendine 
Bertha Jones 
Ida Moss 
Jatarra Ruffin   
Tracy White 
Tammy Anderson 

 
17-06-C18   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Rebecca Carpenter be and is  
Part-Time  hereby appointed as a Van Driver worker for the  
Transportation 2017-2018 school year, effective July 1, 2017. 
Rebecca Carpenter Salary: $10.73 per hr (Salary adjustment for verified prior years of  
   service with HCPS) 
 
17-06-C19   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Change of   Superintendent of Schools, that Juanita Boggs be and is  
Employment   hereby granted transfer from Full-Time Food Service Worker to  

Part-Time Food Service Worker (6 hour), effective May 1, 2017.  
Salary: No Change in Hourly Rate 
 

 
 
17-06-C20    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Appointment   Superintendent of Schools, that the following be and is hereby  
Of Substitute  granted temporary appointments as substitute summer custodians,  
Custodians   effective June 19 - June 30, 2017 at their FY2017 hourly rate:  

Monique Gaither and James Studivant 
 

17-06-C21    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that the following be and are hereby  
Of Substitute  granted temporary appointments as substitute summer custodians,  



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 23 
 
Custodians  effective July 1 – September 2, 2017 at their FY2018 hourly rate:  

Monique Gaither and James Studivant 
 

17-06-C22    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Milton (Chip) G. Jones, Jr. be and  
Full-Time  is hereby appointed as the Division Manager of Maintenance for the  
Division Manager 2017-2018 school year, effective July 1, 2017. 
Milton G Jones, Jr. Salary: $53,121 (step 0) 

Vice:  Richard Thomas 
 

17-06-C23   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Appointment   Superintendent of Schools, that the following be and are hereby  
Of Summer  granted temporary appointments as Summer Transportation  
Transportation  Employees, effective June 19 – June 30, 2017 at their FY2017  
Employees  hourly rate.  

 
Brown, Angela 
Brown, Gay 
Burroughs, Trish 
Carpenter, Mia  
Carpenter, Rebecca 
Collins, Kasey 
Edwards, Ann 
Edwards, Jessica  
Gholson, LaTasha 
Gray, Wendy 
Hanshew, Deana 
Harper, Mary 
Hawthorne, Marie 
Holsopple, Edith 
Horsley, Rene 
Jones, Edward  
Jones, Iesha 
Kirby, Jennie 
Lewis, DreShawn 

Lewis, Latona 
McAllister, William  
Mitchell, Cathi 
Morse, Terry 
Ortiz, Rebeca 
Perkins, Angela 
Peterson, Sheila 
Plant, Tammy 
Pulver, Bill  
Rozier, David 
Sawyer, Robert  
Scott, Aaron 
Shoffner, Tazz 
Smith, Margie 
St. Prix, Kristen  
Thomas, Angela 
VanDelle, Linda 
White, Ashleigh 

 
 

17-06-C24    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Appointment   Superintendent of Schools, that the following be and are hereby  
Of Summer  granted temporary appointments as Summer Transportation  
Transportation Employees, effective July 1 – August 18, 2017 at their FY2018  
Employees  hourly rate. 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 24 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
17-06-C25   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Jessica Fields be and is hereby  
Of   appointed as secretary of Hopewell High School,  
Jessica Fields  effective June 12, 2017. 
   Salary: $23,049 
   Vice:  Tiffany Roman 
 
17-06-C26    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Approval of   Superintendent of Schools, the following supplements be  
Supplements  approved as funded by the Title I, Part A, portion of the  

Brown, Angela White, Ashleigh  
Brown, Gay Thomas, Angela  
Burroughs, Trish VanDelle, Linda  
Carpenter, Mia    
Carpenter, Rebecca   
Collins, Kasey   
Edwards, Ann   
Edwards, Jessica    
Gholson, LaTasha   
Gray, Wendy   
Hanshew, Deana   
Harper, Mary   
Hawthorne, Marie   
Holsopple, Edith   
Horsley, Rene   
Jones, Edward    
Jones, Iesha   
Kirby, Jennie   
Lewis, DreShawn   
Lewis, Latona   
McAllister, William    
Mitchell, Cathi   
Morse, Terry   
Ortiz, Rebeca   
Perkins, Angela   
Peterson, Sheila   
Plant, Tammy   
Pulver, Bill    
Rozier, David   
Sawyer, Robert    
Scott, Aaron   
Shoffner, Tazz   
Smith, Margie   
St. Prix, Kristen    



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 25 
 
   “Every Student Succeeds Act" Application for the 2017- 
   2018 school year effective July 1, 2017 through August 18, 

 2017: 
 

School Title I Tutor/ 
Retired Teacher 

Amount per Hour Maximum Number 
of hours 

Dupont 
Elementary School 

 

Faith Furbush $20.00 30 hours  

 
17-06-C27    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, the following be hereby  
Of Parent   appointed as Title I parent involvement assistants funded  
Involvement  by the FY18 Title I, Part A grant for the 2017-2018  
Assistants  school year effective August 21, 2017 through June 16,   
   2018: 
 

School Parent 
Involvement 

Assistant 

Amount per Hour Maximum No. of 
hours 

Harry E. James Felecia Jones $12.79 300  (not to 
exceed $3849.49) 

Dupont Phylise Taylor $11.83 325 (not to 
exceed $3849.49) 

Carter G. 
Woodson 

Joan Gosier $12.59 800 (not to 
exceed 

$10,072.00) 
Patrick Copeland  Kyleigh Gray $11.65 790 (not to 

exceed $9207.85) 
 
 
 

17-06-C28    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the  
Appointment  Superintendent of Schools, that Peggy Westcott be and is hereby  
of   appointed as Coordinator of ECA, effective June 12, 2017. 
Peggy Westcott Salary: $52,000.00 
   Vice:  New Position 
 
 
17-06-C29            RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval of  Superintendent of Schools, that supplements for the  
Supplements following athletic coaching positions at Hopewell High School be and 

are hereby approved for the 2016-2017 Spring Sports Season. 
 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 26 
 

Position Name Supplement 
Baseball   
Assistant Coach John Duncan $3400.00 
Softball   
Assistant Coach David Hunter $3400.00 

 
17-06-C30   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Approval of   Superintendent of Schools, that a stipend for providing 
Stipend services during the winter sports season at Carter G. Woodson 

Middle School be and is hereby approved for Tanner Ramey. 
   Stipend:  $43.06   
 
17-06-C31   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
Appointment   of Schools, that the following position be and is hereby granted for  
Behind the   the 2017-2018 school year.   
Wheel Educator Behind the Wheel Educator: Herman Henderson 

Salary:  $140.00 per student, not to exceed $8000.00 
   (note: each student pays the division $75.00) 
    
17-06-C32    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
Appointment   of Schools, that the following position be and is hereby approved  
Instructional   for the 2017-2018 school year. 
Support to   Instructional Support to Secondary English: Brenda Lee 
Secondary English Salary: not to exceed $2000.00 
 
17-06-C33    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
Appointment  Schools, that the following supplements be approved for the  
Band Assistant following positions for the 2017-2018 school year. 
   Band Assistant: Anthony Woodson 
   Salary: $2000.00 
 
 
 
17-06-C34    RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
Appointment    of Schools, that the following be and are hereby approved as  
Algebra Readiness Algebra Readiness Tutors for the 2017-2018 school year.  
Tutors   Salary: $20.00 per hour (training/non student hours) 
   Salary: $25.00 per hour (student tutoring) 
   (Funded through the Algebra Readiness Grant) 
   Vera Archie   Kendall Meredith Garrett 
   Jason T. Howerton  Kendra Tucker 
   Tina Wolford 
 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 27 
 
 
 
General Resolutions 
 
Warrants 
17-06-G1 
Review of Bills 
FY2017 

 RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that bills in the amount of $594,185.49 (Operating 
Fund), $136,212.98 (Cafeteria Fund) and $78,358.80 
(Building/Bus Fund) for the May 2017 billing period, have been 
presented and reviewed by the Hopewell City School Board.   

  
   
Miscellaneous  
17-06-G2 
Approval of 
Donations  

 
RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that the Hopewell School Board accepts, with thanks, the 
following donations: 

 $150.00 from the VFW Post 637 to HCPS to sponsor field trips for 
elementary students 

 $3,250.00 from Hopewell Family Center 1472 –Loyal order of the 
Moose to HCPS to sponsor the Maymont Park & Science Museum field 
trips for elementary students 

 $200.00 from Mr. Will Harlan, Owner of Harlan Construction Company 
(c/o Harlan Foundation) to HCPS for the FY18 Summer School 
Program 

 $50.00 from J. W. Enochs, Inc. to HCPS for the FY18 Summer School 
Program 

 $50.00 from Dr. J. D. Skaggs to HCPS for the FY18 Summer School 
Program 

 $90.00 from Ms. Alana Marsh of Richmond, HHS Choral Director, to 
the Choir Department at Hopewell High School 

 $500.00 from the Hopewell Moose Family Center 1472 to Carter G. 
Woodson Middle School for the SOL Carnival 

 $100.00 from the Hopewell Lions Club to Carter G. Woodson Middle 
School for computers in the English Department 

 Supplies, valued at $150.00, from Ms. Linda Adams of Midlothian, VA 
for Mrs. Allen’s classroom at Dupont Elementary School 

 
17-06-G3 
Approval of 
Contract Renewal 

      RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, 
 that the contract for the Mechanical Maintenance Service 
Agreement, be and  
is hereby renewed with Siemens Industry, Inc., in the amount of 
$220,456 for  
the 2017-2018 school year (to include 18 new units at Carter G. Woodson 
Middle School).   



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 28 
 

 
17-06-G4 
Approval of 
Contract Renewal 

      RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools,  
that the contract for Building Automation System Sustainable 
Building  
Services, be and is hereby renewed with Automated Logic in the 
amount of $40,420 for the 2017-2018 school year.  

 
17-06-G5 
Approval of 
Contract Renewal  

      RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that the contract for office, instructional and art supplies, 
be and is hereby renewed with  Kurtz Bros for the 2017-2018 school 
year.  

 
17-06-G6 
Approval of 
Contract Renewal  

      RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that the contract for dust mop and mat cleaning be and is 
hereby renewed with Cintas in the amount of approximately $200.40 
for dust mop heads every other week and approximately $156.50 for 
floor mats every four weeks for the 2017-2018 school year. 

 
17-06-G7 
Approval of 
Contract Renewal  

      RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that the contract for Janitorial Supplies for an amount not to 
exceed $100,000, be and is hereby renewed with Rutherford for the 
2017-2018 school year. 

 
17-06-G8 
Approval of 
Contract Renewal 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that the contract for paper supplies be and is hereby 
renewed with Rutherford in the amount of $116.76 per case (total for 
case of Green Seal toilet tissue, toilet tissue dispensers, Green seal 
paper towel rolls, paper towel dispensers, trash bag liners) on an as 
needed basis for the 2017-2018 school year.  

 
17-06-G9 
Approval of 
Contract Renewal  

 
     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that the contract for hourly rate roof repairs be and is 
hereby renewed with Old Dominion Roofing, in the amount of 
$30.00 per hour for laborer, $55.00 per hour for Supervisor, 
$30.00 per hour for ground safety, $30.00 per hour for 
vehicle/driver, and $55.00 per hour for Inspector, for the 2017-2018 
school year. 

 
17-06-G10 
Approval of 
Contract Renewal   

      RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that the contract for moving services be and is hereby 
renewed with Quality Moving & Storage Co., in the amount of 
$27.50 per hour for laborer, $32.50 per hour for Supervisor, and 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 29 
 

$60.00 per hour for vehicle/driver, for the 2017-2018 school year. 
 
17-06-G11 
Approval of 
Contract Renewal  

      RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that the contract for floor refinishing, screening and 
cleaning be and is hereby renewed with Performance Floors, Inc., 
for an amount not to exceed $4,812.00 every even year and 
$5,192.00 every odd year, beginning with the 2016-17 school year.  

 
17-06-G12 
Approval of 
Contract Renewal  

      RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that the contract for locksmith services be and is hereby 
renewed with  Diamond Locksmith, at a general laborer hourly rate 
of $85.00, emergency/overtime rate of $127.50 and material and 
supply mark-up cost of 40%, for the 2017-18 school year.  

 
17-06-G13 
Approval VHSL 
Membership 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that approval is requested for Hopewell High School to 
continue membership, in the amount of $3,418.10, with the Virginia 
High School League (VHSL) for the 2017-2018 school year. 
 

17-06-G14 
Approval for 
Superintendent to 
issue Employment 
Contracts and 
make Transfers 

      RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that the Hopewell City School Board grant permission to the 
Superintendent to issue employment contracts and make transfers 
through June 30, 2017. All such contracts must be presented to the 
School Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 
17-06-G15 
Approval of 
Authorized 
Signatures in the 
Absence of the 
Superintendent 

      
     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that Kim F. Evans be and is hereby authorized to sign all 
Virginia Department of Education correspondence, reports, documents, 
requisitions, and other official correspondence in the absence of the 
division superintendent for a period beginning July 1, 2017 and ending 
June 30, 2018, without additional compensation. 

  
17-06-G16 
Approval Long-
Term Care Group 
Policy 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of 
Schools, that  the contract with Unum Insurance Company for long-
term care group policy for Hopewell City Public Schools employees 
be and is hereby continued. 
   

 
 
 
 
 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 30 
 
17-06-G17 
Authorization of 
Local Application 
for Federal Funds  
(Title III)  
 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Hopewell City 
School Board, that the Superintendent is authorized to file a local 
application for 2017-2018 for federal funds for the utilization of 
Title III, Part A (Limited English Proficient).  
 
  

17-06-G18 
Approval of Food 
Service Bids 

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that approval be and is hereby granted for the following 
2017-2018 Food Service bids to be awarded to the following 
vendors: 
Item      Company 

   Equipment Repair    Tech-24 
Fresh Fruit/Vegetables   Loving Produce Co. 
Cleaning Supplies    SFS PAK 

   Frozen & Staple Foods   RRS Foodservice 
   Bread      Flowers Foods 
   Milk      Pet 
   Uniforms     Clay Medical 
   Canned Drinks    Coke 
   Paper Products    Riverside Paper Products 
 
17-06-G19 
Approval of 
Contract  

      
     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the contract for the provision of physical therapy 
during the 2017-18 school year be and is hereby awarded to 
Therapy Connection at the rate of $40.00 per treatment unit 
and per evaluation of students (effective July 5, 2017 through June 
30, 2018).  
 

17-06-G20 
Approval of Meal 
Charge Policy  

     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the Meal Charge Policy (required by USDA) to allow 
students to charge up to $5.00 (two lunches) at all Hopewell City 
Public Schools, be and is hereby approved.  

 
17-06-G21 
Approval of 
Contract  

      
     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the contract for the provision of speech language 
services during the summer of 2017 be and is hereby awarded to 
TALK, L.C. at the rate of $65.00 per hour (effective June 16 
through June 30, 2017).  
 

 
17-06-G22 
Approval of 
Contract  

      
     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the contract for the provision of speech language 
services during the  2017-18 school year be and is hereby awarded 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 31 
 

to TALK, L.C. at the rate of $65.00 per hour (effective July 5, 
2017 through June 30, 2018).  

 
17-06-G23 
Approval of Title I 
Application 

      
     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the Superintendent is authorized to file a 
consolidated local application for 2017-2018 for federal 
funds under P.L. 107-110, No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, in the 
amount of $1,645,585.24 for utilization in the following eligible 
programs: 
 
Title I, Part A (Improving Basic Programs)  $1,440,597.07 
Title II, Part A (Teacher Quality)                $  204,988.17 
 
 

 
17-06-G24 
Approval of 
Head Start 
Application 
 
 
Action Items 
 

      
     RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
of Schools, that the Head Start Program COLA Funds 
Application in the amount of $12,343.00, be and is hereby 
approved as presented.  
 
 

17-06-L54   RESOLVED, upon the recommendation of the 
Appointment   Superintendent of Schools, that Keith Crews be and is hereby 
Of     appointed to the position of Supervisor of Alternative Education 
Keith Crews  and Discipline for the 2017-1018 school year.  
   Vice:  Michael Camden 
   Salary: $80,082 
 
17-06-L55    Resolved, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent 
Approval of  of Schools that Pamela Aerni be paid a supplement in the amount of 
Supplement  $6,000.00, $3,000.00 per semester, to serve as Coordinator of 

Instruction at Hopewell High School for the 2017-2018 school year. 
 
Upon a motion by Dr. Deborah Marks and seconded by Mr. Greg Cuffey, the Board 
agreed to approve the action items as a block. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Greg Cuffey and seconded by Dr. Deborah Marks, the Board 
approved the action items, with all members present voting aye. 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 32 
 

A. Dr. Hackney advised the Board of the incredible experience in professional 
development that engaged the majority of our teaching staff in an intensive week-
long PBL Odyssey training opportunity.  All of our teachers will go through the 
same training and it is conducted in-house.  

B. Dr. Hackney reminded the Board members of the VSBA Conference on Education 
that will be held on July 18, 2017 in Richmond.    

C. Dr. Hackney also mentioned that the division will be applying for a planning grant 
that will enable the division to gather information and determine the feasibility of 
year round schools.  The purpose of the grant is to gather information, only.  The 
Board approved through a motion by Mr. Gregory Cuffey and seconded by Dr. 
Deborah Marks permission for the division apply for the planning grant.     

 
. 

 

Information & General Information Items - None. 
 
 
Board Member Comments 
 
Mrs. Jefferson thanked everyone for a “job well done” and gave a special thanks to Mr. 
Barnes and his team for the five-star retirement dinner.  She went on to thank Dr. Bailey 
and her staff for the compassion and love that is exhibited in their work and 
complimented Mr. Crews for his extraordinary performance.  She wished the staff and 
enjoyable summer. 
 
Mr. Cuffey acknowledged Byron Davis for all of his hard work to improve Patrick 
Copeland’s test scores and meet accreditation.  He commended Mr. Davis and his staff 
for the outstanding job.  He also congratulated the high school for meeting accreditation 
again and that he was proud of the high school.  He went on to compliment Mr. Barnes 
on the Summer Feeding Bus and noted that feeding so many children during the summer 
is incredible.  He complimented Mr. Crews for his outstanding work with New Hope 
Academy and mentioned that the children are thriving and conforming into the type of 
citizens that we aspire them to be.  He finished by complimenting Carter G. Woodson on 
the progress the school has made and mentioned that the division has made a lot of 
progress in one year.  He correlates the progress to everyone’s hard work and he 
thanked the staff for all that they do. 
 
Dr. Marks reiterated all that Mr. Cuffey mentioned and related a story about another high 
school principal who led her staff to overcome the odds that are against a school who has 
not met accreditation and after going through demoralizing Department of Education 
meetings and training sessions, she advised the Superintendent that her school would 
never go through this again.  That principal led her staff to meeting accreditation in one 
year.  She was that principal and she thanked Mr. Davis for accomplishing the same task 
with his staff.  She challenged each principal whose school did not make accreditation to 



School Board Minutes 
June 22, 2017 
Page 33 
 
make the same promise to Dr. Hackney.  She closed by wishing all of the staff and 
enjoyable summer. 
 
Vice-Chair Hyslop closed by commending all staff members on their motivation and 
commitment.  She mentioned that Hopewell City Public Schools is a family that takes care 
of all of its members and that we do not give up on any children.  All are taken in, taken 
seriously and given a home. 
 
Vice-Chair Hyslop adjourned the regular meeting at 9:11 p.m. 
 
In witness whereof I set my signature this 13th day of July, 2017. 
 
 
 
     Chairman: _________________________________ 
              School Board of the City of Hopewell 
 
 
 
Attest: _________________________ Clerk 



 1 

 
               SCHOOL BOARD OF THE CITY OF HOPEWELL 

 
School Board Meeting 

July 13, 2017 
School Board Office @ 103 N. 12th Avenue 

 
 
1. Call to Order for Early Session (5:30 p.m.) (Cover Letter) 
 
2. Roll Call 
 
3. Prayer 
 
4. Adopt Agenda for Early Session 
 
5. Discussion Items: 

 
A. Strategic Plan Approval 
B. School Board Retreat 
C. School Start Times/Transportation Proposal 

• Proposal 
 

6. Closed Meeting (Resolution) 
 

• Discussion/consideration of the employment, assignment, appointment, 
promotion, performance, demotion, salaries, disciplining or resignation of 
Division and potential employees 

 
7. Recess to Regular Meeting 
 
8. Call to Order for Regular Meeting (7:30 p.m.) 
 
9. Roll Call 

 
10. Prayer   
 
11. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
12. Certification of Closed Session 
 
13. Adopt Agenda for Regular Session 

 
14. Special Recognition 
 

• Introduction of New Administrators 
 
 



 2 

 
15. Reports (Cover Sheet) 
 

A. HCPS Summer Projects by Department    
 

B. Finance, Maintenance and Clerk’s Reports  – Mrs. Monique Barnes 
• Totals 
• Expenditures/Revenues Summary 
• Expenditures/Revenues Details 
• Check Register 6/15/17 
• Check Register 6/29/17 
• Head Start Monthly Reports 
• Petty Cash Report 
• Membership Reports  
• Attendance Report 
• Maintenance Report 

 
16. Public Comments 

 
17. Consent Agenda 

 
A. Approval of Minutes 

• June 22, 2017 
 

B. Approval of Licensed Resolutions 
•  Resolutions 

 
C. Approval of Classified Resolutions 

•  Resolutions 
 

D. Approval of General Resolutions 
• Resolutions 

◊17-07-G10 –Warrants    
◊17-07-G11 –Donations 
◊17-07-G12– Printing Contract   
◊17-07-G13– Strategic Plan 
◊17-07-G14– Amended and Restated MOU with City 

 MOU 
◊17-07-G15– School Start Times/Transportation Proposal 

 
18. Action Items  
 
19. Superintendent’s Report 
 

A. Administrative Retreat 
 
20. Information Items 



 3 

 
A.  Review of Policies  

• Policy BBFA – Conflict of Interests and Disclosure of Economic  
Interests 

• Policy CBCA – Disclosure Statement Required of Superintendent 
• Policy EEAh – Student Transportation Services 
• Policy EFB – Free and Reduced Price Food Services 
• Policy GA – Personnel Policies Goals 
• Policy GAH – School Employee Conflict of Interests 
• Policy GBM – Professional Staff Grievances 
• Policy GCPF – Suspension of Staff Members 
• Policy IJh – Guidance and Counseling Program 
• Policy JFCC – Student Conduct on School Buses 
• Policy JHC – Student Health Services  
• Policy JHCH – School Meals and Snacks 
• Policy JO – Student Records 
• Policy JOA – Student Transcripts 
• Policy KGh – Community Use of School Facilities 
• Policy LEB – Advanced/Alternative Courses for Credit 

 
B.  Review of Regulation  

• Regulation LC-E – Hopewell City Public Schools Charter School  
Application Addendum 
  

21. General Information 
 

22. Board Member Comments 
 
23. Adjournment 

 
 

UPON REQUEST OF THE CLERK, THE SCHOOL DIVISION SHALL MAKE 
REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS FOR A DISABLED PERSON TO BE ABLE 
TO PARTICIPATE IN SCHOOL BOARD MEETINGS 



























































































 

TALENT BANK RESUME 
BOARDS, COMMISSIONS & AUTHORITIES 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL 

300 North Main Street 
Hopewell, Virginia 23860 

 
Board of Architectural Review (ARB) 
Board of Bldg. Code & Fire Prevention Code Appeals 
Board of Equalization (BOE) 
Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) 
Central Virginia Film Office Board 
Central Virginia Waste Management Authority (CVWMA) 
Community Planning and Management Team (CPMT) 
Crater District Area Agency on Aging 
Crater Health Local Advisory Board 
Disability Services Board/Crater Planning District 
Economic Development Authority 
District 19 Community Services Board (DCSB) 
Dock Commission 
Downtown Design Review Committee 
Friends of the Appomattox River (FOLAR) 
Historic Preservation Committee 
Housing Authority, Hopewell Redevelopment & HRHA 
John Tylor Community College Board (JTCC) 
Keep Hopewell Beautiful (Formerly Clean City 
Commission) 
 

 
Law Library Committee 
Library Board (Appomattox Regional) 
Neighborhood WATCH Advisory Council 
Planning Commission/Wetlands Board 
Resource Conservation and Development (RC&D) 
Council of the South Centre Corridors 
Recreation Commission 
Hopewell Water Renewal Commission (H2O Renewal) 
School Board 
Senior Citizen Advisory Commission 
Sesquicentennial Committee 
Social Services Advisory Board 
Technology Fund Committee 
Telecommunications Regulation Committee 
Transportation Safety Board (TSB) 
Virginia’s Gateway Region 
Youth Services Commission 
 

First Choice 
    
     

Second Choice 
    
     

Third Choice 
    
     

Date Submitted:     (This resume will become void two years from this date)  Occupation:     
 
Name:               
 
Address:              

This is my Home Address   Business Address   Mailing Address 
 

Address:              
This is my Home Address   Business Address   Mailing Address 

 
 
Home Phone: (     )             Cell Phone: (     )            Office Phone:  (     )           Email:     
 
What are your specific qualifications, skills and abilities as they relate to the Board(s), Commission(s) or Committee(s) 
on which you have requested to serve; and how will they enhance that Board, Commission or Committee?  
               
 
               
 
Additional Comments:             
 
               
 
               
In what ward of the City of Hopewell do you reside?  1  2  3  4  5  6   7 
 
 
Do you have relatives who are employed by the City of Hopewell, serve as a member of either of the agencies to which 



you seek appointment, or who serve on Hopewell City Council?  Yes    No 
 
If so, whom?        Which agency?      
 
 
 
By my signature hereto, I certify that (1) the information given by me in this document is correct to the best of my 
knowledge, (2) I understand that I may be required to provide proof of identity and, if applicable, proof of residency, and 
(3) I understand and agree that the city of Hopewell may make an independent investigation of my background and 
qualifications, including (a) under Sec. 2-61 (Criminal background check required as a condition of service to the city) of 
the city code, and (b) as to my references, past and present employment, education, involvement in litigation or other 
proceedings, and other items.  
 
 
 
 
               
Signature         Date 
 
 
Please return completed form to: Office of the City Clerk, Municipal Building 
     300 North Main Street, Hopewell VA 23860 
 
 
 Requires annual filing of Financial Disclosure Statements  Requires annual filing of Real Estate Disclosure Statements 
 

 
The members of the Hopewell City Council appreciate your interest in serving the Citizens of the City 

 
 



 

PROCLAMATIONS 

§ 

RESOLUTIONS  

§ 

PRESENTATIONS 
 



CHD is funding the study, design, and production of Appomattox River Trail Markers to help 
connect neighborhoods to the ART. This will give residents the opportunity to add more 
exercise into their daily lives. The focus area of this pilot project is along the Trail from 
Broadway and 21st to City Point.

As part of the process we gathered public and stakeholder input through two public 
meetings and at three community events including the Hopewell H.E.A.L.Fest.  I also met 
with Councilor Bailey and with Planning staff several times. We received input from the 
ARB and the DDRC. We also reviewed the Wayfaring Plan, the VCU City Point Study, and the 
proposed Bike Trail section of the comprehensive plan to ensure compatibility with each. 
We are also able to connect with the Riverside Stormwater trail project.

1



The project leverages the work of Appomattox River Trail Master Plan which was funded by 
the Cameron Foundation and prepared by two expert consultant organizations. The Trail 
will ultimately connect 20+ miles of shared‐use trail along the river – which will connect to 
other trails to provide even broader access. Staff has received a printed copy of the two 
part plan for its file and the document is available online at folar‐va.org. 

2



The Hopewell Family of markers uses the framework of the ART marker system which 
provides consistency of identity and branding as well as cost efficiency AND the flexibility to 
be compatible with existing and/or proposed seals, symbols, logos, etc.

The cost to produce the 14 specified markers is $15,000, which is being funded by CHD. 
The only cost to the City is $1200 to increase the size of the City Point Kiosk. This funding is 
budgeted in the Dept. of Development budget.

3



These are illustrative photos of placement and location of a banner and a pedestrian 
directional. They will be placed in right‐of‐way areas.

4



This is a sample of the small Kiosk. Rec & Parks Director has approved placement. We are 
working on the large kiosk. The schedule is to begin production by the end of the month 
and installation in September.

5



PUBLIC 
HEARINGS 

 



 

PH-1 
 



Council action form  1-3-17        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

11-9-
2016 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
 Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Receive public comment on amendments to the current fee 
structure of the departments of Public Works and Recreation and Parks. 
 
ISSUE:  Many fees pertaining to the operations of the departments of Public Works and Recreation and 
Parks have become outdated and require revision.  The department of Public works has proposed 
adjustments to fees relating to Citizen Convenience Center usage and leaf collection, while the 
department of Recreation and Parks has proposed adjustments to fees relating to recreational facility 
rentals.  The proposed amendments to the current fee structure will assist with offsetting expenditures 
while improving efficiency for both departments.   
    
RECOMMENDATION: City Staff recommends Council consider citizen comments regarding the 
adjustment of fees charged by the departments of Public Works and Recreation and Parks and to 
approve the proposed fee amendments.   
 
TIMING:   Public Hearing – August 8, 2017. 
 
BACKGROUND:   Staff gave presentations at the July 11, 2017 Council Work Session to discuss the 
need for fee changes in both departments.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   The overall fiscal impact on Public Works is expected to be near zero.  Through 
increased revenues, the department of Recreation and Parks will offset rising expenditures related to 
facility maintenance and repairs.     
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   Proposed fee schedules for both departments 
 
STAFF:    Aaron Reidmiller, Director of Recreation and Parks 

Edward Watson, Director of Public Works  

   

 



 
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

 
Hopewell City Council will conduct a public hearing at a meeting on Tuesday, August 8, 
2017, at 7:30 p.m. in City Council Chambers in the Municipal Building, 300 North Main 
Street, Hopewell, Virginia 23860, for the purpose of receiving comments regarding 
proposed fee increases and decreases for the Citizen’s Convenience Center, Leaf 
Collection, and Recreation and Parks, as follows: 

 
Citizen’s Convenience Center – Proposed Fee Changes 
 Current Proposed 
Residential Solid Waste –Car 

Pickup or small trailer 
Dual axle trailer 

$3.25 
$10.25 
$20.50 

$3.00  
$10.00 
$35.00 

Construction and Demo – Car $3.25 $3.00 
Pickup or small trailer $20.50 $20.00 

Dual axle trailer $30.75 $50.00 
   
Brush and Yard Waste – Car No charge No charge 

Pickup or small trailer No charge No charge 
Dual ale trailer No charge $10.00 

   
Leaf Collection – Proposed Fee Changes 
Seniors/Handicapped – 1st Pick up No cost No cost 

2nd & 3rd Pick up $5.25 each $5.00 
   
Other Residents – 1st pickup $10.25 $10.00 

2nd & 3rd pick up $20.50 $20.00  
 
 

Recreation and Parks Proposed Fee Adjustments  
Fee Adjustment Requests 

  Facility Name Current Fee Proposed Fee 
Mathis Field Rental $50/day $100/day 
Mathis Concession Rental $100/day $150/day 
Mathis Concession Security Deposit New fee $100  
Atwater Soccer Fields $50/day $75/day 
Atwater Soccer Concession $100/day $150/day 
Atwater Concession Security Deposit New fee $100  
Additional Field Maintenance New fee $35/hour 
Tournament Cancellation Fee New fee $50  

   AW Park Pavilion Half Day Resident $20  $25  
AW Park Pavilion Full Day Resident $35  $40  



Recreation and Parks Proposed Fee Adjustments  
Fee Adjustment Requests 

  Facility Name Current Fee Proposed Fee 
AW Park Pavilion Half Day Non Res $35  $40  
AW Park Pavilion Full Day Non Res $60  $65  

   Atwater SC Pavilion Half Day Resident $15.50  $25  
Atwater SC Pavilion Full Day Resident $30.75  $40  
Atwater SC Pavilion Half Day Non Res $30.75  $40  
Atwater SC Pavilion Full Day Non Res $51.00  $65  

   Crystal Lake Large Pavilion Half Day Res $35  $50  
Crystal Lake Large Pavilion Full Day Res $60  $75  
Crystal Lake Small Pavilion Half Day Res $20  $25  
Crystal Lake Small Pavilion Full Day Res $35  $40  
Crystal Lake Large Pavilion Half Day Non Res $65  $80  
Crystal Lake Large Pavilion Full Day Non Res $130  $150  
Crystal Lake Small Pavilion Half Day Non Res $35  $40  
Crystal Lake Small Pavilion Full Day Non Res $60  $65  

   Heritage Gardens Half Day Res $150  $25  
Heritage Gardens Full Day Res $225  $40  
Heritage Gardens Half Day Non Res $250  $40  
Heritage Gardens Full Day Non Res $325  $65  

   HCC Gymnasium Half Gym Res $26/hr $40/hr 
HCC Gymnasium Full Gym Res $51/hr $80/hr 
HCC Gymnasium Half Gym Non Res $36/hr $50/hr 
HCC Gymnasium Full Gym Non Res $65/hr $100/hr 
HCC Gymnasium Security Deposit $20  $50  

   HCC Meeting Room 3 hour block Res $26  $50  
HCC Meeting Room 3 hour block Non Res $47  $75  
HCC Meeting Room Additional Hours $10  $10  
HCC Meeting Room Use of Kitchen $30  $50  
HCC Meeting Room Security Deposit $20  $50  

   HCC Pool 3 Hour Block (1-20 Children) Res $65  $85  
HCC Pool 3 hour block (1-20 children) Non res $75  $100  
HCC Pool 3 Hour block (21-40 children) Res New fee $110  
HCC Pool 3 hour block (21-40 children) Non res New fee $135  
Use of inflatable obstacle course New fee $50  



Recreation and Parks Proposed Fee Adjustments  
Fee Adjustment Requests 

  Facility Name Current Fee Proposed Fee 
HCC Pool Security Deposit New fee $50  
HCC Pool Lane Rental* $5/hr/lane $10/hr/lane 
*Allows for contract negotiation with higher volume users such as swim teams and military training 
agencies.   
No Requested Fee Change 

  Adult Resident Annual Membership $180  
 Adult Non resident Annual Membership $255  
 Family Resident Annual Membership $360  
 Family Nonresident Annual Membership $500  
 Student Resident Annual Membership $90  
 Student Nonresident annual membership $150  
 Senior resident annual membership $90  
 Senior Nonresident annual membership $150  
 Military resident annual membership $150  
 Military nonresident annual membership $235  
 Person with Disability resident annual membership $80  
 Person with Disability nonresident annual mem $110  
 

   Adult resident limited membership $90  
 Adult nonresident limited membership $150  
 Family resident limited membership $240  
 Family nonresident limited membership $345  
 Student resident limited membership $45  
 Student nonresident limited membership $75  
 Senior resident limited membership $45  
 Senior nonresident limited membership $75  
 

   Resident monthly membership $35  
 non-resident monthly membership $40  
 military resident monthly membership $30  
 military nonresident monthly membership $35  
 

   Resident daily membership joining fee $13  
 Nonresident daily membership joining fee $19  
 Adult resident daily fee $3  
 Adult nonresident daily fee $5  
 student resident daily fee $2  
 student nonresident daily fee $3  
 senior resident daily fee $2  
 



Recreation and Parks Proposed Fee Adjustments  
Fee Adjustment Requests 

  Facility Name Current Fee Proposed Fee 
senior nonresident daily fee $3  

 
   Guest pass resident $5  

 guest pass non resident $6  
 

   Replacement membership card  $6  
  

 



 

PH-2 
 



____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Mayor, Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6    □ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3  
□ □ Vice Mayor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1 □ □ Councilor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Wayne Walton, Ward #5  

     □ □ Councilor Jackie Shornak, Ward #7 
       

  
  

 

 

 
 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 
 

 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
    

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Public Hearing and Vote:  Transfer of Property from 
Recreation and Parks Department to Hopewell City Public Schools 
 
ISSUE:  The Recreation and Parks Department has requested to transfer real property to 
Hopewell City Public Schools.  The parcel consists of an unused open green space and is 
identified by parcel identification number 030-1065, otherwise known as Union Hall Field.  
City Council will hear public comment from citizens on the proposed transfer of land.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the transfer of real property after 
receiving public comment from citizens.   
 
TIMING:  The public hearing will be held at the August 11 meeting of Hopewell City Council 
beginning at 7:30 p.m.  
 
BACKGROUND:   The transfer of property is the first part of a larger plan that will also 
include the expansion of Mathis Park, using vacant wooded property currently owned by 
Hopewell Public Schools.  The plan to eliminate unused space and to improve existing high 
volume parks is consistent with City Council’s Strategic Plan.  The entire plan was presented 
to City Council during work session on August 9, 2016.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   The transfer will result in cost savings for the Department of Recreation 
and Parks based on the reduction of maintenance responsibility.   
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   PowerPoint Presentation from August 9, 2016 
 
STAFF:   Director of Recreation and Parks-Aaron Reidmiller 
 

 

Commented [AR1]:  



____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Mayor, Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6    □ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3  
□ □ Vice Mayor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1 □ □ Councilor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Wayne Walton, Ward #5  

     □ □ Councilor Jackie Shornak, Ward #7 
       

  
  

 

 

SUMMARY:  The Recreation and Parks Department will transfer ownership of a small, 
unused green space to Hopewell Public Schools as the first phase of a larger 
project to increase the size of Mathis Park.   

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE
The Hopewell City Coun-
cil will hold a public hear-
ing  in  accordance  with
Virginia Code § 15.2-1800,
on  July  11,  2017  at  7:30
p.m. in City Council Cham-
bers,  300 N. Main Street,
Hopewell,  Virginia,  to
consider  c it izen  com-
ments  regarding  the
transfer of parcel  identi-
fication number 030-1065.
Information regarding the
above  may  be  examined
at  the  Office  of  the  Dir-
ector  of  Recreation  and
Parks,  100  W.  City  Point
Road, Hopewell,  Virginia
from  8:30  a.m.  to  5:00
p.m., Monday through Fri-
day.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY/AF-
FIRMATIVE ACTION EM-

PLOYER



Hopewell Recreation and Parks
August 23, 2016



 Hopewell Recreation and Parks and Hopewell Public Schools 
personnel are proposing the exchange of several parcels that 
would benefit each organization

 This presentation will provide additional information on the 
proposed exchange for members of Hopewell City Council 
and the Hopewell School Board 

• Union Hall Field (Recreation ownership)
• Hopewell High School (Schools ownership)



 The Union Hall site is a practice baseball/softball field 
currently owned by Recreation and Parks

 Because of limited use and need, the Recreation and Parks 
department has proposed a transfer of ownership for the 
parcel to Hopewell City Public Schools



 Mathis Park is a baseball/softball 
complex currently operated by 
the Recreation Department

 Real estate records show the 
land as being part of the School 
Board’s parcel that also includes 
Hopewell High School and 
Patrick Copeland Elementary 
School

 The boundary lines of the parcel 
should be adjusted to reflect 
Recreation and Parks 
Department ownership of the 
existing baseball fields, as well 
as the wooded are that will be 
used for new passive 
recreational amenities (trails, 
disc golf, etc.)





 Union Hall ownership transferred to schools

 Hopewell High School boundary line 
adjustment:  Mathis Park and wooded 
property transferred to Recreation and Parks



 

PH-3 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Hopewell City Council will conduct a public hearing at a meeting on Tuesday, August 8, 2017, at 
7:30 p.m. in City Council Chambers in the Municipal Building, 300 North Main Street, 
Hopewell, Virginia 23860, for the purpose of receiving comments regarding the following 
requests in accordance with Article XXI, Amendments of the Hopewell Zoning Ordinance: 
 
1. A request from the proposed business owner of 903 South 15th Avenue for a conditional use 

permit to locate a metal carport in the B-3, Highway Commercial District. The property is 
further identified as parcel ID# 045-0380. 
 

2. A request from Wanda Gilbert for a conditional use permit to operate a driving school at 217 
East Broadway.  The property is zoned B-1, Downtown Central Business District, and is 
further identified as parcel ID# 080-0760. 

3. A request from Haley’s Honey Meadery LLC for a conditional use permit to establish a micro 
winery at 205 East Poythress Street.  The property is zoned B-1, Downtown Central Business 
District and is further identified as parcel ID# 080-0391. 

Information regarding the above-referenced matters may be examined at the Department of 
Development, Room 321, Municipal Building, Hopewell, Virginia, Monday through Friday 
during normal business hours, or by telephone at 804-541-2220.  

 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION EMPLOYER 

 
 

 
 
Form No. 1 (revised 6/4/97) 

 
 

 



 
 

 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor K. Wayne Walton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Mayor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 

       
  
  

 

  
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda 
Public Hearing 
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business 
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Public Hearing to consider citizen comments regarding a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow a carport in the B-3 Zoning District, located at 903 South 15th  
Avenue. 
 
ISSUE:  The City has received an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a carport in the B-3 
Zoning District.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The City Administration recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit 
with conditions.  
 
TIMING:   A public hearing will be held on Tuesday, August 8, 2017.  
 
BACKGROUND:  The Hopewell Zoning Ordinance requires a Conditional Use Permit for the placement of 
a metal carport in the B-3 Zoning District.  The applicant was unaware that a permit was needed to erect a 
carport.  The carport was placed at 903 South 15th Avenue without a permit.  After speaking with the 
applicant, he requested a Conditional Use Permit which would allow the carport to remain. . 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   None 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   1. Staff Report  
      
STAFF:       Tevya W. Griffin, Director of Neighborhood Assistance & Planning  
          Horace H. Wade, III, City Planner 

 



Conditional Use Permit                                                                                                                                        Page   1        
903 South 15th Avenue 

Lorenzo Coleman  
903 South 15th Avenue 
Lots 24-27, Block 15, Hopewell Heights 
  
 
Conditional Use Permit to locate a carport on 
property located in a B-3 Zoning Distrit 
Staff Report prepared for City Council 

  
 

 
This report is prepared by the City of Hopewell Department of Development Staff to 
provide information to City Council to assist them in making an informed decision on this 
matter. 
 
I. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Planning Commission June 1, 2017 Tabled 
 

Planning Commission July 13, 2017 Recommended Approval 
 

City Council August 8, 2017 Pending 
 

 

II. IDENTIFICATION AND LOCATIONAL INFORMATION: 

 

Proposed Zoning: N/A 
Existing Zoning: B-3, Highway Commercial District 

Size of Area: 14,950 square feet  

Owner: Kim & Anthony Bennett  

Location of Property: Intersection of South 15th Avenue and Arlington Road near 
Poplar Street 

Election Ward: Ward  

Land Use Plan Recommendation: Commercial 

Strategic Plan Goal: Economic Development 

Map Location(s): Sub Parcel #: 045-0380 

Zoning of Surrounding Property: 
 
 
 
 

North:  B-3 
South:  B-3 
East:    B-3 
West:   B-3 
 



Conditional Use Permit                                                                                                                                        Page   2        
903 South 15th Avenue 

III. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The City of Hopewell has received a Conditional Use Permit request from to 
locate a carport on property identified as 903 South 15th Avenue.  

 
IV. SUBJECT PROPERTY: 
 

The subject property is zoned B-3, Highway Commercial District and is identified 
as Tax Sub-parcel # 045-0380. The lot is 14,950 sq. ft. in size.  The legal 
description of the property is Lots 24-27, Block 15, Hopewell Heights.  
 
The subject property is located at the intersection of South 15th Avenue also 
identified as Oaklawn Boulevard (Route 36) and Arlington Road.  Although, 
currently the building is vacant, the primary use of the property has been a vehicle 
repair shop.  The applicant would also operate a vehicle repair shop at this 
location.  

 
V. APPLICABLE ZONING ORDINANCE SECTION(S): 

Article XI, Highway Commercial District (B-3) 
Statement of Intent 

This district is intended to provide sufficient space in appropriate locations for a 
wide variety of commercial and miscellaneous service activities, generally serving 
a wide area and located particularly along certain existing major thoroughfares 
where a general mixture of commercial and service activity now exists, but which 
uses are not characterized by extensive warehousing, frequent heavy trucking 
activity, open storage of materials or the nuisance factors of dust, odor, and noise 
associated with manufacturing. This includes such uses as retail stores, banks, 
business offices, drive-in restaurants and automobile sales and service facilities. 

Article XI, Section A, Use Regulations 
5. Automobile and truck sales and service establishments, and rental agencies, 
provided that vehicles lifts and pits, dismantled and wrecked automobiles and all 
parts and supplies be located within a building enclosed on all sides and provided 
that all service and repair of motor vehicles be conducted in a building enclosed 
on all sides. 

Article I, Definitions 
35. AUTOMOBILE REPAIR: The use of a site for the repair of automobiles, 
noncommercial trucks, motorcycles. This includes muffler shops, wheel and brake 
shops, oil change and lubrication, tire service and sales, installation of CB radios, 
car alarms, stereo equipment, or cellular telephones.  This does not include body 
and fender shops, paint and welding services.  
Article XXI, Amendments, Section G, Conditional and Special Use Permits, Sub-
Section c. 1-4: 

 



Conditional Use Permit                                                                                                                                        Page   3        
903 South 15th Avenue 

1. When the Director has certified that the application is complete, it shall be 
deemed received and referred to the Planning Commission for its review 
and recommendation to City Council.  

 
2. The Planning Commission shall, within ninety (90) days after the first 

meeting of the Planning Commission after such referral, report to the City 
Council its recommendation as to the approval or disapproval of such 
application and any recommendation for establishment of conditions, in 
addition to those set forth in this Article, deemed necessary to protect the 
public interest and welfare. Failure of the Planning Commission to report 
within ninety (90) days shall be deemed a recommendation of approval.  

 
3. Upon receipt of the recommendation of the Planning Commission, the City 

Council, after public notice in accordance with Virginia Code § 15.2-2204, 
shall hold at least one public hearing on such application, and as a result 
thereof, shall either approve or deny the request.  

 
4. In approving any conditional use permit, the City Council may impose 

conditions or limitations on any approval as it may deem necessary to 
protect the public interest and welfare.  Such additional standards may 
include, but need not be limited to: 

 
i. Special setbacks, yard or construction requirements, increased 

screening or landscaping requirements, area requirements, 
development phasing, and standards pertaining to traffic, 
circulation, noise, lighting, hours of operation and similar 
characteristics; and 
 

ii. A performance guarantee, acceptable in form, content and amount 
to the City, posted by the applicant to ensure continued compliance 
with all conditions and requirements as may be specified.  

 
Article XXI, Amendments, D. Conditional and Special Use Permits, Sub-Section d. 

 
d. Approval Criteria 

 
As may be specified within each zoning district, uses permitted subject to 
conditional use review criteria shall be permitted only after review by the 
Planning Commission and approval by the City Council only if the applicant 
demonstrates that:  
 
1. The proposed conditional use is in compliance with all regulations of the 

applicable zoning district, the provisions of this Article, and any 
applicable General Provisions as set forth in the Zoning Ordinance.  
 



Conditional Use Permit                                                                                                                                        Page   4        
903 South 15th Avenue 

2. The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the proposed use is not 
detrimental to, and will not endanger, the public health, safety, morals, 
comfort, or general welfare. 
 

3. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other 
property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor 
substantially impair the use of other property within the immediate 
proximity. 
 

4. The proposed conditional use conforms to the character of the 
neighborhood within the same zoning district in which it is located. The 
proposal as submitted or modified shall have no more adverse effects on 
health, safety or comfort of persons living or working in or driving 
through the neighborhood, and shall be no more injurious to property or 
improvements in the neighborhood, than would any other use generally 
permitted in the same district. In making such a determination, 
consideration shall be given to the location, type, size, and height of 
buildings or structures, type and extent of landscaping and screening on 
the site, and whether the proposed use is consistent with any theme, 
action, policy or map of the Comprehensive Plan.  
 

5. The exterior architectural appeal and function plan of any proposed 
structure will not be so at variance with either the exterior architectural 
appeal and functional plan of the structures already constructed or in the 
course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of 
the applicable zoning district, and shall enhance the quality of the 
neighborhood.  

 
6. The public interest and welfare supporting the proposed conditional use is 

sufficient to outweigh the individual interests which are adversely affected 
by the establishment of the proposed use.  
 

7. The proposed use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of any 
feature determined to be of significant ecological, scenic or historic 
importance.  

 
 

VI. ZONING/STAFF ANALYSIS: 
 

The applicant desires to use a carport as an accessory to his vehicle repair 
business that has not yet opened.  He purchased a carport and after inquiring with 
the carport contractor about the status of a building permit to erect the carport he 
was told a building permit wasn’t needed.  The Department of Development, 
Planning and Zoning Division, was informed about the placement of a carport and 
it was determined that building permit was not obtained. Contact was made with 



Conditional Use Permit                                                                                                                                        Page   5        
903 South 15th Avenue 

the property owner and the business owner and a Conditional Use Permit 
application was filed. 
 
While in the Development Office, witnessed by the City Planner and the Director, 
the applicant contacted the carport contractor and asked why he was told that a 
building permit was not needed. The representative told him that he should have 
reviewed his contract that says that they are not responsible for local ordinances. 
He asked for a refund and that the company remove the structure since it was 
placed under false pretenses.  The representative would not oblige. 
 
At the January 8, 2017 Planning Commission meeting, the Commission voted to 
approve a recommendation to approve carports in the B-3 District if not seen from 
the public right-of-way with a Conditional Use Permit, issued by City Council. 
Council approved this amendment at their April 25, 2017 meeting.    
 
The applicant is applying for a CUP in order to keep the carport located on the 
property to use in conjunction with his soon to open business.   If approved, the 
applicant must also apply for a building permit and be approved by the Building 
Official in order to keep the carport.  
 
The property is located on a corner lot.  The carport will be seen from the public 
right-of-way from all angles. The location of the property will therefore not 
provide screening of the structure as recommended (not seen from the public 
right-of-way).  There are various ways to screen structures, i.e. fencing, 
landscaping.  Landscape screening to the rear and the side opposite the building 
could be added, although the front of the structure would still be seen from the 
street.  
 
The erection of carports in a business district has been a topic of great 
conversation in the city, especially, in the past three years.  Several small business 
owners, particularly, those that deal in vehicular repair or sales desire to use the 
structure as an alternative to building additional bays.  The Zoning Ordinance, 
however, conflicts with this desire, in that all repair of vehicles must take place 
inside an enclosed structure and that a conditional use permit must be obtained to 
erect a carport in the B-2 and B-3 district.  Carports are still not allowed in the B-
1 and B-4 zoning districts.  
 
The department has open violations on three businesses that are carport related.  
One was the impetus for the most recent request for a Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment to allow a metal carport with a Conditional Use Permit in the B-3 
Zoning District.  The business owner filed a building permit to place a carport on 
a property located in the B-3 District and was informed they were not allowed.   
Another offender uses carports for cover from precipitation as the bays to the 
garage are too small to hold large cars. This business owner has provided a formal 
plan to enlarge the building to accommodate new car bays which would alleviate 
the use of the carports.  However a full site plan has not yet been provided.  



Conditional Use Permit                                                                                                                                        Page   6        
903 South 15th Avenue 

The last known offender made a request to allow metal carports in the B-2 Zoning 
District with a Conditional Use Permit.  City Council approved the request but the 
applicant has not yet applied for the permit.  
 
It is clear that there must be some resolution to the use of carports in business 
districts.  The restriction to allow them in business districts was meant to approve 
the aesthetic of our corridors.  However, instead of heading the law, business 
owners, some purposefully, and others unknowingly, have placed carports in 
violation.  Striking a balance between being business friendly and upholding the 
integrity of the zoning ordinance and its purpose to provide compatible land uses 
is difficult but hopefully obtainable.  This will be a goal of the upcoming Zoning 
Ordinance re-write that will follow the approval of the 2027 Comprehensive Plan.  
 
To help this situation now, the Department will add information to the City 
website that list uses that require a building permit.  Hopefully this will help 
curtail the placement of buildings without proper permits.  

 
VII. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff is recommending approval of the request to locate a metal carport at 903 
South 15th Avenue.  Staff recommends the following conditions be placed on the 
property in conjunction with approval of the carport. 
 
1. Landscape screening be established prior to the issuance of a final certificate 

of occupancy to the rear and side opposite the building of the carport.  Said 
screening must grow, at minimum, to block the view of the open sections of 
the carport located at the bottom.   

2. The owner of the business will be responsible to maintain the health of the 
vegetation through proper pruning, spacing and watering.  The Department of 
Development can require reestablishment of vegetation when it is witnessed to 
be in poor condition (wilting, brown, diseased, dying) 

 
VIII. PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 

 
The Planning Commission recommended approval with conditions, with a vote of 
4 to 0 to allow a metal carport at 903 South 15th Avenue also identified as Sub-
Parcel # 043-0830.  The conditions recommended are listed in Section VII above. 
 

IX. CITY COUNCIL DECISION 
 
The City Council approves, approves with conditions, denies, the Conditional Use 
Permit, with a vote of ___ to ___ to allow a metal carport at 903 South 15th 
Avenue also identified as Sub-Parcel #043-0830.   
 

 
 



Conditional Use Permit                                                                                                                                        Page   7        
903 South 15th Avenue 

Attachments: 
1. Application 
2. Location of property 
3. Picture of carport 
 









S 1
5T

H A
VE

S 1
5T

H A
VE

OA
KL

AW
N 

BL
VD

ARLINGTON RD

S 1
5T

H A
VE

ARLINGTON RD

SPRUCE ST

SP
RUCE S

T

B-3

R-2

1304

903

901

905

450285

450290

450300

450310

450320

450325

450340

450345

450350

450355

450360

450370

450375

450380

450421

450470

450470

450475

0

0

0 50 10025
Feet

¯

Carport Location

903 South 15th Avenue





 

PH-4 
 



 
 

 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor K. Wayne Walton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Mayor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 

       
  
  

 

  
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda 
Public Hearing 
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business 
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Public Hearing to consider citizen comments regarding a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow a driving school in the B-1 Zoning District at 217 East Broadway. 
 
ISSUE:  The City has received an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a driving school to 
locate in the B-1 Zoning District.  In order to operate a school in this district, a Conditional Use Permit must 
be approved by City Council.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The City Administration recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit, 
without conditions.  
 
TIMING:   A public hearing will be held on Tuesday, August 8, 2017.  
 
BACKGROUND:  On October 11, 2016, City Council voted to approve a Zoning Ordinance Amendment to 
allow schools in the B-1 Zoning District by issuance of a Conditional Use Permit. Prior to this amendment, 
schools were not an allowable use in this district.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Economic Development 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   1. Staff Report  
      
STAFF:       Tevya W. Griffin, Director of Neighborhood Assistance & Planning  
          Horace H. Wade, III, City Planner 

 



Conditional Use Permit                                                                                                                                        Page   1        
217 East Broadway Avenue 

Wanda Gilbert 
217 East Broadway Avenue  
Lot 5 & 6, Block 8, West City Point Subdivision 
  
Conditional Use Permit for a Driving School 
Staff Report prepared for the City Council – August 8, 2017 

 

 
This report is prepared by the City of Hopewell Department of Development Staff to 
provide information to Planning Commission to assist them in making an informed 
decision on this matter. 
 
I. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Planning Commission July 13, 2017 Recommended Approval 
 

City Council August 8, 2017 Pending 
 

II. IDENTIFICATION AND LOCATIONAL INFORMATION: 

 

Proposed Zoning: N/A 

Existing Zoning: B-1, Downtown Central Business District  

Size of Area: 5,685 square feet or 0.131 acres 

Owner: Robert E Jr. & Naomi B. Brown 

Location of Property: Lot 5 & 6, Block 8, West City Point Subdivision   

Election Ward: Ward 1 

Land Use Plan Recommendation: Commercial  

Strategic Plan Goal: N/A 

Map Location(s): Sub Parcel #: 080-0760  

Zoning of Surrounding Property: North:  B-1 
South:  B-1 
East:    B-1 
West:   B-1 
 

III. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The City of Hopewell has received a Conditional Use Permit request from Wanda 
Gilbert to operate a Driving School at 217 East Broadway Avenue.  
 

 



Conditional Use Permit                                                                                                                                        Page   2        
217 East Broadway Avenue 

IV. SUBJECT PROPERTY: 
 

The subject property is zoned B-1, Downtown Central Business District and is 
identified as Tax Sub-parcel # 080-0760 and is located at 217 East Broadway 
Avenue. The lot is 5,685 sq. ft. in size.  The property is identified as Lot 5 & 6, 
Block 8, West City Point.  
 

 
V. APPLICABLE ZONING ORDINANCE SECTION(S): 
 

ARTICLE I, Definitions: School, states 
 

“A public, parochial, or private school or college, or a school for the 
mentally or physically handicapped, giving regular instruction at least five 
(5) days a week, except holidays, for a normal school year of not less than 
seven (7) months, it may also include a school primarily devoted to giving 
instruction in vocational, professional, musical, dramatic, artistic, 
terpsichorean, linguistic, scientific, religious or other special subjects.” 
 
ARTICLE IX, Downtown Central Business District, B-1, Section A:  Use 
Regulations states: 
 
“Schools, with Conditional Use Permit issued by City Council (October 11, 
2016). “ 
 
Article XXI, Amendments, Section G, Conditional and Special Use Permits, Sub-
Section c. 1-4: 

 
1. When the Director has certified that the application is complete, it shall be 

deemed received and referred to the Planning Commission for its review 
and recommendation to City Council.  

 
2. The Planning Commission shall, within ninety (90) days after the first 

meeting of the Planning Commission after such referral, report to the City 
Council its recommendation as to the approval or disapproval of such 
application and any recommendation for establishment of conditions, in 
addition to those set forth in this Article, deemed necessary to protect the 
public interest and welfare. Failure of the Planning Commission to report 
within ninety (90) days shall be deemed a recommendation of approval.  

 
3. Upon receipt of the recommendation of the Planning Commission, the City 

Council, after public notice in accordance with Virginia Code § 15.2-2204, 
shall hold at least one public hearing on such application, and as a result 
thereof, shall either approve or deny the request.  

 



Conditional Use Permit                                                                                                                                        Page   3        
217 East Broadway Avenue 

4. In approving any conditional use permit, the City Council may impose 
conditions or limitations on any approval as it may deem necessary to 
protect the public interest and welfare.  Such additional standards may 
include, but need not be limited to: 

 
i. Special setbacks, yard or construction requirements, increased 

screening or landscaping requirements, area requirements, 
development phasing, and standards pertaining to traffic, 
circulation, noise, lighting, hours of operation and similar 
characteristics; and 
 

ii. A performance guarantee, acceptable in form, content and amount 
to the City, posted by the applicant to ensure continued compliance 
with all conditions and requirements as may be specified.  

 
Article XXI, Amendments, D. Conditional and Special Use Permits, Sub-Section d. 

 
d. Approval Criteria 

 
As may be specified within each zoning district, uses permitted subject to 
conditional use review criteria shall be permitted only after review by the 
Planning Commission and approval by the City Council only if the applicant 
demonstrates that:  
 
1. The proposed conditional use is in compliance with all regulations of the 

applicable zoning district, the provisions of this Article, and any 
applicable General Provisions as set forth in the Zoning Ordinance.  
 

2. The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the proposed use is not 
detrimental to, and will not endanger, the public health, safety, morals, 
comfort, or general welfare. 
 

3. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other 
property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor 
substantially impair the use of other property within the immediate 
proximity. 
 

4. The proposed conditional use conforms to the character of the 
neighborhood within the same zoning district in which it is located. The 
proposal as submitted or modified shall have no more adverse effects on 
health, safety or comfort of persons living or working in or driving 
through the neighborhood, and shall be no more injurious to property or 
improvements in the neighborhood, than would any other use generally 
permitted in the same district. In making such a determination, 
consideration shall be given to the location, type, size, and height of 
buildings or structures, type and extent of landscaping and screening on 



Conditional Use Permit                                                                                                                                        Page   4        
217 East Broadway Avenue 

the site, and whether the proposed use is consistent with any theme, 
action, policy or map of the Comprehensive Plan.  
 

5. The exterior architectural appeal and function plan of any proposed 
structure will not be so at variance with either the exterior architectural 
appeal and functional plan of the structures already constructed or in the 
course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of 
the applicable zoning district, and shall enhance the quality of the 
neighborhood.  

 
6. The public interest and welfare supporting the proposed conditional use is 

sufficient to outweigh the individual interests which are adversely affected 
by the establishment of the proposed use.  
 

7. The proposed use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of any 
feature determined to be of significant ecological, scenic or historic 
importance.  

 
 

VI. ZONING/STAFF ANALYSIS: 
 

The applicant proposes to use the building located at 217 East Broadway Avenue 
to operate a driving school. On October 11, 2016 City Council voted to approve a 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment to allow schools in the Downtown Central 
Business District with a Conditional Use Permit.  Previously, schools were not 
permitted.  
 
The applicant intends to use the site for a driving school that would have between 
15-20 students at one time.  The weekly hours of operation would be from 3:00 
p.m. – 10:00 p.m. in the evening and on Saturdays from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  
The applicant intends to offer classes in Driver Improvement (8 hours), 
Classroom Refresher (8 hours), Driver Education Classroom (30 hours), and 
Behind the Wheel (14 hours). While most classes will take place in the building, 
the behind the wheel course will focus on students driving throughout the 
community, interstate, and rural roads. 
 
Having productive schools in the Downtown Central Business District would 
assist in the development of the district by promoting existing businesses with 
students seen as potential customers for other businesses in the vicinity. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Conditional Use Permit                                                                                                                                        Page   5        
217 East Broadway Avenue 

 
VII. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff is recommending approval of the request for a driving school at 217 East 
Broadway Avenue, also identified as Lot 5 & 6, Block 8, in the West City Point 
Subdivision. Staff recommends the Planning Commission discuss hours of 
operation and place conditions on these hours.  

 
VIII. PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

 
At their July 13, 2017 meeting the Planning Commission voted to recommend 
approval of the Conditional Use Permit request to allow a driving school at 217 
East Broadway Avenue, also identified as Lot 5 & 6, Block 8, in the West City 
Point Subdivision.  There were no conditions added.  
 

IX. CITY COUNCIL DECISION: 
 
The Hopewell City Council approves, approves with conditions, denies, a request 
from Wanda Gilbert for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a driving school at 217 
East Broadway Avenue, also identified as Lot 5 & 6, Block 8, in the West City 
Point Subdivision.  
 
 
 

Attachments: 
1. Application  
2. Location Map 
 







E RANDOLPH RDE BROADWAY

E CAWSON ST

LIBRARY ST

LIBRARY ST

E BROADWAY

E BROADWAY101

207

208

204

201

205 1/2

205

207

209

213

217
215

219

225

235
237

200
206

212

216

218

222

115

201B

0 50 10025
Feet

217 East Broadway Avenue

¯



 

PH-5 
 



 
 

 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor K. Wayne Walton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Mayor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony J. Zevgolis, Ward #3   □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore, Ward #4 

       
  
  

 

  
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda 
Public Hearing 
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business 
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Public Hearing to consider citizen comments regarding a request 
to allow a micro-winery (meadery) in the B-1 Zoning District, with a Conditional Use Permit.  
 
ISSUE:  The City has received an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a micro-winery locate in 
the B-1 Zoning District, located at 207 East Poythress Street.  In order to operate a micro-winery in this 
district, a Conditional Use Permit must be approved by City Council.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The City Administration recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit, 
without conditions.  
 
TIMING:   A public hearing will be held on Tuesday, August 8, 2017.  
 
BACKGROUND:  On May 10, 2016, City Council voted to approve a Zoning Ordinance Amendment to 
allow a micro-winery in the B-1 Zoning District with a Conditional Use Permit, issued by City Council. Prior 
to this amendment, micro-wineries were not an allowable use in this district.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Economic Development 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:   1. Staff Report  
      
STAFF:       Tevya W. Griffin, Director of Neighborhood Assistance & Planning  
          Horace H. Wade, III, City Planner 

 



Conditional Use Permit                                                                                                                                        Page   1        
207 East Poythress 

Haley’s Honey Meadery, LLC 
207 East Poythress Street  
Lot 2R, Block 5, West City Point Subdivision 
  
 
Conditional Use Permit to establish a Meadery 
Staff Report prepared for City Council – August 8, 2017 

  
 

 
This report is prepared by the City of Hopewell Department of Development Staff to 
provide information to City Council to assist them in making an informed decision on this 
matter. 
 
I. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Planning Commission May 11, 2017 Tabled 
 

Planning Commission July 13, 2017 Recommended Approval 
  

City Council August 8, 2017 Pending 
 

 
 

II. IDENTIFICATION AND LOCATIONAL INFORMATION: 

 

Proposed Zoning: N/A 
Existing Zoning: B-1, Downtown Central Business District  

Size of Area: 2,555 square feet or 0.058 acres 

Owner: Nathan & Nelia Grubb 

Location of Property: Lot 2R, Block 5, West City Point Subdivision   

Election Ward: Ward 1 

Land Use Plan Recommendation: Commercial  

Strategic Plan Goal: N/A 

Map Location(s): Sub Parcel #: 080-0391  

Zoning of Surrounding Property: North:  B-1 
South:  B-1 
East:    B-1 
West:   B-1 
 
 



Conditional Use Permit                                                                                                                                        Page   2        
207 East Poythress 

 
 
 
 

III. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The City of Hopewell has received a Conditional Use Permit request from 
Haley’s Honey Meadery to establish a micro winery at 207 East Poythress Street.  

 
IV. SUBJECT PROPERTY: 
 

The subject property is zoned B-1, Downtown Central Business District and is 
identified as Tax Sub-parcel # 080-0391 and is located at 207 East Poythress 
Street. The lot is 2,555 sq. ft. in size.  The property is identified as Lot 2R, Block 
5, West City Point.  
 
The property is a part of the Broyhill building complex which once housed a car 
dealership.  At glance, it appears that there is only one large building but there are 
actually seven separate buildings.  Currently, there is a boat manufacturing 
company, and a truck bedlining located in the complex.   

 
V. APPLICABLE ZONING ORDINANCE SECTION(S): 
 

ARTICLE I, Definitions: Micro winery, with Conditional Use Permit, states 
 
A facility that manufactures wine onsite. Main ingredients not necessarily 
produced onsite. 

 
ARTICLE IX Downtown Central Business District, B-1, Section A:  Use 
Regulations states: 
 
Micro winery, with Conditional Use Permit issued by City Council.  
 
Article XXI, Amendments, Section G, Conditional and Special Use Permits, Sub-
Section c. 1-4: 

 
1. When the Director has certified that the application is complete, it shall be 

deemed received and referred to the Planning Commission for its review 
and recommendation to City Council.  

 
2. The Planning Commission shall, within ninety (90) days after the first 

meeting of the Planning Commission after such referral, report to the City 
Council its recommendation as to the approval or disapproval of such 
application and any recommendation for establishment of conditions, in 



Conditional Use Permit                                                                                                                                        Page   3        
207 East Poythress 

addition to those set forth in this Article, deemed necessary to protect the 
public interest and welfare. Failure of the Planning Commission to report 
within ninety (90) days shall be deemed a recommendation of approval.  

 
3. Upon receipt of the recommendation of the Planning Commission, the City 

Council, after public notice in accordance with Virginia Code § 15.2-2204, 
shall hold at least one public hearing on such application, and as a result 
thereof, shall either approve or deny the request.  

 
4. In approving any conditional use permit, the City Council may impose 

conditions or limitations on any approval as it may deem necessary to 
protect the public interest and welfare.  Such additional standards may 
include, but need not be limited to: 

 
i. Special setbacks, yard or construction requirements, increased 

screening or landscaping requirements, area requirements, 
development phasing, and standards pertaining to traffic, 
circulation, noise, lighting, hours of operation and similar 
characteristics; and 
 

ii. A performance guarantee, acceptable in form, content and amount 
to the City, posted by the applicant to ensure continued compliance 
with all conditions and requirements as may be specified.  

 
Article XXI, Amendments, D. Conditional and Special Use Permits, Sub-Section d. 

 
d. Approval Criteria 

 
As may be specified within each zoning district, uses permitted subject to 
conditional use review criteria shall be permitted only after review by the 
Planning Commission and approval by the City Council only if the applicant 
demonstrates that:  
 
1. The proposed conditional use is in compliance with all regulations of the 

applicable zoning district, the provisions of this Article, and any 
applicable General Provisions as set forth in the Zoning Ordinance.  
 

2. The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the proposed use is not 
detrimental to, and will not endanger, the public health, safety, morals, 
comfort, or general welfare. 
 

3. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other 
property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor 
substantially impair the use of other property within the immediate 
proximity. 
 



Conditional Use Permit                                                                                                                                        Page   4        
207 East Poythress 

4. The proposed conditional use conforms to the character of the 
neighborhood within the same zoning district in which it is located. The 
proposal as submitted or modified shall have no more adverse effects on 
health, safety or comfort of persons living or working in or driving 
through the neighborhood, and shall be no more injurious to property or 
improvements in the neighborhood, than would any other use generally 
permitted in the same district. In making such a determination, 
consideration shall be given to the location, type, size, and height of 
buildings or structures, type and extent of landscaping and screening on 
the site, and whether the proposed use is consistent with any theme, 
action, policy or map of the Comprehensive Plan.  
 

5. The exterior architectural appeal and function plan of any proposed 
structure will not be so at variance with either the exterior architectural 
appeal and functional plan of the structures already constructed or in the 
course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of 
the applicable zoning district, and shall enhance the quality of the 
neighborhood.  

 
6. The public interest and welfare supporting the proposed conditional use is 

sufficient to outweigh the individual interests which are adversely affected 
by the establishment of the proposed use.  
 

7. The proposed use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of any 
feature determined to be of significant ecological, scenic or historic 
importance.  

 
 

VI. ZONING/STAFF ANALYSIS: 
 

The applicant proposes to rehabilitate the building at 207 East Poythress to 
establish a micro winery.  The applicant would produce mead or honey wine. 
Mead is an alcoholic drink fermented with honey and water fermented with yeast.  
Haley’s uses honey from Prince George and Chesterfield County.  The applicant 
also uses various fruits like strawberries and blueberries grown in Virginia.  Mead 
may be still, carbonated, sparking; dry, semi-sweet or sweet.  
 
Manufacturing of the mead would take place in the micro-winery.  For definition 
purposes, the mirco-winery is considered a farm winery.  The mead therefore can 
be sold in an ABC store. The amount of alcohol that can be made in mead is 
limited by the capacity of the yeast added to withstand alcohol.  Yeast cannot live 
in a solution containing more than 14% alcohol.  However, there are rare 
occasions where mead can be manufactured at 18% alcohol.  Mead will be 
distributed from this location.  Vino will be the shipping company for the 
meadery.  Patrons can also take mead away from the business in designated 
containers for future consumption.  



Conditional Use Permit                                                                                                                                        Page   5        
207 East Poythress 

The store will have an industrial look with a bar, tasting room, and small 
manufacturing area.  The exterior design of the building will be approved by the 
Downtown Design Review Committee (DDRC) as the building is located in the 
B-1 Zoning District, and the historic downtown historic district.  

 
Parking for the meadery could be accommodated through proposed angled 
parking spaces along East Poythress Street, and a proposed reconfigured parking 
lot soon to be owned by the City along City Point Road and Randolph Road 
(transferred by the Economic Development Authority).  While currently, the B-1 
Zoning District does not have parking space requirements, it is good practice to 
determine the required parking spaces if the use was any other Zoning District.   
The use requires 10 parking 
 
The closest meadery is located in the Scott’s Addition section of Richmond.  
Williamsburg, Virginia also has a meadery.  The owner desires to open the first 
meadery in the Tri-Cities area.  
 

 
VII. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff is recommending approval of the request to establish a micro winery at 207 
East Poythress Street, also identified as Lot 3R, Block 5, in the West City Point 
Subdivision. Staff recommends the Planning Commission discuss hours of 
operation and place conditions on these hours.  

 
VIII. PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

 
At their July 13, 2017 meeting the Planning Commission voted 4 to 0 to 
recommend approval of the Conditional Use Permit to establish a micro winery at 
207 East Poythress Street, also identified as Lot 2R, Block 5, in the West City 
Point Subdivision.   
 

IX. CITY COUNCIL DECISION: 
 

The Hopewell City Council approves, approves with conditions, denies, a request 
from Haley’s Honey Meadery, LLC, a request for a Conditional Use Permit to 
establish a micro-winery (meadery) at 207 East Poythress Street, also identified as 
Lot 2R, Block 5, in the West City Point Subdivision.  
 

 
 
Attachments: 
1. Application  
 







E RANDOLPH RD

E RANDOLPH RD

E BROADWAY

E POYTHRESS ST

211

217

206

212

216

218

222
226

201B

0 50 10025
Feet

205 East Poythress Street

¯



 
  

 COMMUNICATIONS   

     FROM CITIZENS 
 



 

REGULAR 
BUSINESS 

 



 

R-1 

 
 



Council Action Form  2017        
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda S. Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Tony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Mayor Jackie M. Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

Insert 
Date of 
Meeting 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 
    Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
 Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

 Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
  
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Approval of the Richmond-Crater Multi-
Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan (2017 Update) as required by the Disaster Mitigation 
Act of 2000. The requirements for local mitigation plans are found in Section 44 Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 201.6. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the 2017 Richmond-Crater 
Multi-Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan.   
 
TIMING:  City Council action is requested on August 8th, 2017.  
 
BACKGROUND:   Every five years the hazard mitigation plan is updated as required by 
FEMA to be eligible for hazard mitigation funds. The Richmond-Crater Region received 
a grant to hire Dewberry to update our plan. This update included a fresh look at all of 
our mitigation actions by all of the impacted departments, to ensure that future mitigation 
projects will be eligible for federal funding through FEMA hazard mitigation grants. The 
plan was reviewed by the Virginia Department of Emergency Management, and then 
approved by FEMA, pending your adoption.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Required for the receipt of Future Hazard Mitigation funds.  
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: Richmond-Crater Multi-Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 
(2017 Update) Hopewell Executive Summary. 
 
STAFF:    
Benjamin Ruppert, Coordinator of EM,  Donald R. Hunter II, Fire Chief     

 



 

www.fema.gov 

 

U.S. Department of Homeland Security 

Region III 
One Independence Mall, Sixth Floor 
615 Chestnut Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19106-4404 

July 14, 2017 
 
 
Dr. Jeffrey D. Stern  
State Coordinator of Emergency Management 
Virginia Department of Emergency Management 
10501 Trade Court 
North Chesterfield, Virginia 23236 
 
Dear Dr. Stern: 
 
The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) has completed our review of the 
Richmond-Crater Hazard Mitigation Plan, based on the standards contained in 44 Code of 
Federal Regulations (CFR), Part 201, as authorized by the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 
(DMA2K).  These criteria address the planning process, hazard identification and risk 
assessment, mitigation strategies and plan maintenance requirements. 
 
The plan received a “satisfactory” rating for all required criteria and is approvable pending 
adoption.  However prior to formal approval, each participating jurisdiction in the Richmond-
Crater Hazard Mitigation Plan is required to provide FEMA with a resolution of adoption. 
 
We commend you for your dedication demonstrated in supporting the DMA2K, and both 
Richmond Regional Planning District Commission and Crater Planning District Commission’s 
commitment to reduce future disaster losses. 
 
If you have questions, please contact Kathryn Lipiecki, Chief, Risk Analysis Branch, at (215) 
931-5655. 
 

Sincerely, 
 

 
 

Eugene K. Gruber, P.E. 
Director, Mitigation Division 

 
cc: Robert Coates, State Hazard Mitigation Officer 
 Dennis K. Morris, Executive Director, Crater Planning District Commission 
  Martha Shickle, Executive Director, Richmond Regional Planning District Commission 



2017 Richmond-Crater Multi-Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
 

WHEREAS, the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000, as amended, requires that local governments, 
develop, adopt, and update natural hazard mitigation plans to receive certain federal assistance, 
and 
 
WHEREAS, a Hazard Mitigation Technical Advisory Committee (“HMTAC”) comprised of 
representatives from the Counties of Charles City, Chesterfield, Dinwiddie, Greensville, 
Goochland, Hanover, Henrico, New Kent, Prince George, Powhatan, Surry and Sussex, the 
Cities of Colonial Heights, Emporia, Hopewell, Petersburg and Richmond, and the Towns of 
Ashland, Claremont, Dendron, Jarratt, McKenney, Stoney Creek, Surry, Wakefield and Waverly 
was convened to study the Richmond Regional and Crater Planning District Commissions’ risks 
from and vulnerabilities to natural hazards, and to make recommendations on mitigating the 
effects of such hazards on this multi-region; and 
 
WHEREAS, a request for proposals was issued to hire an experienced consulting firm to work 
with the HMTAC to update the 2011 Richmond-Crater Multi-Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan for 
the Richmond Regional and Crater Planning District Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, the efforts of the HMTAC members and the consulting firm of Dewberry, in 
consultation with members of the public, private and non-profit sectors, have resulted in an 
update of the 2011 Richmond-Crater Multi-Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan, including the City of 
Hopewell, Virginia. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Hopewell City Council, that the Richmond– 
Crater Multi-Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan update dated July 14th 2017 is hereby approved 
and adopted for the City of Hopewell   
 
ADOPTED by the City of Hopewell this ___ day of ___________________, 2017. 
 
     APPROVED: 
 
 
 
 
 
     _______________________________________ 
     Jackie M. Shornak, Mayor, City of Hopewell 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 
 



 

R-2 

 
 



 

 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Mayor Jackie Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 
    Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 

   Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Approval and adoption of ordinance assessing $5.00 court 
fee for an electronic summons system  
 
ISSUE: City Council is asked to approve an  o rd inance  a l lowing fo r  a ssessment  o f  an  
addi t i onal  $5 .00  cour t  fee ,  pu rsuant  to  Va.  Code §  17 .1-279.1  Addi t ional  
asses sment  f or  e lec t ronic  summons ,  to be charged in each criminal or traffic case in the 
Hopewell district or circuit courts, in which the defendant is charged with a violation of any statue 
or ordinance. 
  
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval. 
 
TIMING:  Effective July 1, 2017 
 
BACKGROUND: The Hopewell Sheriff’s Department is in the process of implementing an 
electronic summons system. Officers complete a traffic summons on a computer, print the 
ticket and transmit the data electronically to the Sheriff’s Department 's in-house records 
storage system and to the Virginia Supreme Court, which sends the summons to the appropriate 
district court for subsequent adjudication. 
 
House Bill 477 from the 2014 Virginia Assembly allows any county or city through its 
governing body to assess an additional sum not in excess of $5.00 as part of the fees in each 
criminal or traffic case. The assessment shall be collected by the clerk of the court in which the 
action is filed, remitted to the treasurer of the appropriate county or city, and held by such 
treasurer subject to disbursement by governing body to a local law enforcement agency solely to 
fund software, hardware, and associate equipment costs for the implementation and maintenance 
of an electronic summons system. 
 
 
 

 



 

 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Christina Luman-Bailey, Ward #1  □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Anthony Zevgolis, Ward #3    □ □ Mayor Jackie Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

       
  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: Staff projects this assessment will add $50,000 to  $100,000 in yearly 
revenue to fund the majority of software, hardware, and associate equipment costs for the 
continuing maintenance of the City's electronic summons system. 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:  Va.  Code  §  17 .1-279.1  
 
STAFF: Mark Haley, City Manager 

Luther Sodat, Sheriff 
  Tommy Cheek 
   



Code of Virginia
Title 17.1. Courts of Record
Chapter 2. Clerks, Clerks' Offices and Records

§ 17.1-279.1. Additional assessment for electronic summons 
system.

Any county, city, or town, through its governing body, may assess an additional sum not in excess 
of $5 as part of the costs in each criminal or traffic case in the district or circuit courts located 
where such cases are brought in which the defendant is charged with a violation of any statute or 
ordinance, which violation in the case of towns arose within the town. The imposition of such 
assessment shall be by ordinance of the governing body, which may provide for different sums in 
circuit courts and district courts. The assessment shall be collected by the clerk of the court in 
which the action is filed, remitted to the treasurer of the appropriate county, city, or town, and 
held by such treasurer subject to disbursements by the governing body to a local law-enforcement 
agency solely to fund software, hardware, and associated equipment costs for the implementation 
and maintenance of an electronic summons system. The imposition of a town assessment shall 
replace any county fee that would otherwise apply.

2014, c. 325; 2015, cc. 546, 643.

Page 1 of 1

7/13/2017http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/title17.1/chapter2/section17.1-279.1/



ORDINANCE 2017-___ 
 

An ordinance amending Chapter 2, Article 1 of the City Code, by adding Sec. 2-14 
(Assessment for electronic summons system providing for the assessment of costs in 
criminal and traffic cases). 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY HOPEWELL CITY COUNCIL: 
 
That the Hopewell City Code, 1981, is hereby amended as follows: 

 
Chapter 2 ADMINISTRATION 
 
ARTICLE I.  IN GENERAL 
  
. . .  
 
Sec. 2-14.  Assessment for electronic summons system. 
 
 Pursuant to Virginia Code § 17.1-279.1, there is hereby imposed an assessment of $5.00 
as part of the costs in each criminal and traffic case in the district and circuit courts of the City of 
Hopewell in which the defendant is charged with violation of any statute or ordinance.  The 
assessment shall be in addition to any other sum and shall be collected by the clerk of the court 
in which the case is filed, remitted to the city treasurer, and held by the treasurer subject to 
disbursements by the City Council to local law-enforcement agencies solely to fund software, 
hardware, and associated equipment costs for the implementation and maintenance of an 
electronic summons system. 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

R-3 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

R-4 
 

 



 

 

 

 

R-5 
 

 



 

 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Mayor, Michael C. Bujakowski Ward #3   □ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore Ward #4 
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1 □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Roosevelt Edwards, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Jackie Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Councilor Wayne Walton, Ward #5 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 2.2014 

       August 8, 
2017 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 
 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Approval of Hopewell Water Renewal Fund (Fund 032) FY 
2017 Capital Projects Budget Amendment 
 
ISSUE:  Three projects on the FY 2017 Adopted Capital Budget received bids greater than the approved 
budget.  The Hopewell Water Renewal Fund Capital Projects Budget must be amended to reflect and 
document the total cost and source of funding for these two capital projects.  An additional $275,500 
needs to be appropriated for the following capital projects: 
 

Project Budget Amount Additional Budget 
Amount Needed 

Reason for Budget Amendment 

UNOX System 
Electrical Upgrade 

$1,100,000 $240,456 Bid amount greater than original 
budget amount 

Centrifuge $1,559,000 $35,000 Incorrect bid amount entered in 
request for budget approval 

LIMS $163,400 $44 Incorrect bid amount entered in 
request for budget approval 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  The City Administration recommends City Council’s approval to amend the 
FY 2017 Hopewell Water Renewal Fund Capital Projects Budget to increase the total funding (estimated 
revenues) and appropriations by $275,500. 
 
TIMING: These capital projects are underway and procurement is ready to be awarded, but to proceed 
with the capital projects using FY 2017 funds, City Council must approve a budget amendment 
resolution as soon as possible. 
 
BACKGROUND:  In 2015, these capital projects were included and approved by the Hopewell Water 
Renewal Commission as part of the total Capital Projects Budget for FY 2017.   Based on the HRWC’s 
project approval and payment policy, funds for the payment of the capital project costs shall be invoiced 
to the members of the HWRC as the vendor invoices are received.  
 

 



 

 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Mayor, Michael C. Bujakowski Ward #3   □ □ Vice Mayor Jasmine E. Gore Ward #4 
□ □ Councilor Christina J. Luman-Bailey, Ward #1 □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor Roosevelt Edwards, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Jackie Shornak, Ward #7 
□ □ Councilor Wayne Walton, Ward #5 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 2.2014 

       August 8, 
2017 

FISCAL IMPACT: Failure to increase the budget will delay the projects and will potentially cause 
permit violations because vital equipment and software are not being replaced in a timely fashion.   
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS:  None  
 
STAFF:   Jeanie Grandstaff, Director, Hopewell Water Renewal  



 

ADJOURN 

 
 


	ADP113A.tmp
	School Board Meeting
	July 13, 2017
	School Board Office @ 103 N. 12th Avenue

	ADPBEBD.tmp
	Land Exchange Proposal
	Introduction
	Union Hall Field
	Mathis Park	
	Mathis Park Aerial
	Summary

	903 South 15th Avenue Carport August CC_combined - PH3.pdf
	20170708183233291
	903S15carportlocation
	903 South 15th Avenue Carport August 2017 CC.pdf
	Lorenzo Coleman
	903 South 15th Avenue
	Lots 24-27, Block 15, Hopewell Heights
	Conditional Use Permit to locate a carport on property located in a B-3 Zoning Distrit
	Staff Report prepared for City Council


	217 East Broadway CUP Driving School August 2017CC_combined - PH4.pdf
	20170708181443964
	217 Broadway_map
	217 East Broadway CUP Driving School August 8 2017 CC.pdf
	Wanda Gilbert
	217 East Broadway Avenue
	Lot 5 & 6, Block 8, West City Point Subdivision
	Conditional Use Permit for a Driving School
	Staff Report prepared for the City Council – August 8, 2017


	207 East Poythress CUP Microwinery August 2017CC_combined - PH5.pdf
	20170708181449807
	205 Broadway_map
	205 East Poythress CUP Microwinery August 2017 CC.pdf
	Haley’s Honey Meadery, LLC
	207 East Poythress Street
	Lot 2R, Block 5, West City Point Subdivision
	Conditional Use Permit to establish a Meadery
	Staff Report prepared for City Council – August 8, 2017





